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Keep your promise—Do your part!

IHSA’s new state-of-the-art
Mobile Classroom delivers
training when and where you
need it
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21 Voyager Court South
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Toll Free: 1-800-263-5024
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Infrastructure Health and Safety Association		

IHSA is a leader in health and safety
education. Through skills-based
training, auditing, and evaluation,
we provide safety solutions to those
who perform high-risk activities such
as working at heights, working with
energized high-voltage power systems,
driving motor vehicles, transporting
dangerous goods, working on suspended
access equipment, and clearing utility lines.
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Make safety work
for you. IHSA is
your first step.

Proudly serving construction, electrical, utilities, transportation, aggregates, natural gas, and ready-mix concrete

Your Guide

To construction health and
safety legislation
Get information on 50 key topics that
will help you reference and understand
your legal obligations under the Ontario
construction regulations (213/91) in a
plain-language format.

Get the new
FREE mobile app
Application designed and maintained by

Training when and where
you need it
IHSA’s New Regional Facilities
Thunder Bay
As of September 2017, IHSA
has been using a dedicated
classroom/training facility
in the newly constructed
Electrical Industry Building
in Thunder Bay. Feedback
from this new space has been
positive and IHSA is looking
to expand on course offerings
at the facility in partnership
with IBEW Local 402.

Voyager Training Centre
21 Voyager Court South, Etobicoke, Ontario M9W 5M7
Tel: 1-800-263-5024 • Fax: 416-674-8866

Kingston
IHSA has a dedicated classroom/training facility in a space at the Kingston
Construction Association. IHSA conducts both classroom-based and handson training here.

IHSA’s new Ottawa facility
Log on to ihsa.ca or visit
Google Play or the App
Store to download your
FREE app today.

In 2018, IHSA will open a new training facility
in Ottawa. This new space at 2515 St. Laurent
Blvd. will feature two classrooms, a meeting
room, as well as a hands-on training area.

Safety Pals coming soon!

Centre for Health & Safety Innovation
5110 Creekbank Road, Suite 400,
Mississauga, Ontario L4W 0A1
Tel: 1-800-263-5024 • Fax: 905-625-8998

Keep your
promise to return
home safe to
your loved ones.

IHSA will be launching its new Safety
Pals in 2018. These friendly faces
representing our member industries will guide
you to IHSA’s many products, services, and resources
featured in our publications, on our website,
and in promotional materials.

Do your part
to keep your
workplace
safe.

JOEY
AMBER

Skills Development Centre
5345 Creekbank Road, Mississauga, ON L4W 5L5
Tel: 1-800-263-5024

Contents
About Us.............................................................................................. 2
Strategic Plan..................................................................................6
Message from the CEO............................................................ 7
Message from the Board........................................................ 8
Target Those of Greatest Need.......................................10
Vulnerable Workers
• Young workers
• New workers
• New Canadians

High-hazard Activities
• Powerline Technician Apprenticeship
Training
• Working at Heights Training
• Transportation Services Strategy

Small Business
• Connecting Consultants
Campaign

Enhance Service Delivery................................................... 22
Promote Safety Culture
• Annual General Meeting
• Certificate of Recognition (COR™)
• Safety Groups
• National Construction Safety
Officer (NCSO)
• Center for Construction Research
and Training (CPWR)
• IHSA.ca Magazine
• Labour-Management Network

Extend Our Reach
• Keep Your Promise
Campaign
• Trade Shows and
Events
• Day of Mourning
• Social Media
• IHSA.ca Website

Collaborate with System Partners
• Ontario Ministry of Labour (MOL)
and Prevention Office
• Partners in Prevention (PIP)
• Employment and Social
Development Canada (ESDC)
• Fleet Safety Council (FSC)
• Threads of Life
• Other Collaborations

Develop a Sustainable Business................................... 44
• Training
• Commitment to Quality
• Products and Resources

Member Injury and Illness Performance................ 50
• Traumatic Injuries
• Traumatic Fatalities
• Occupational Disease

Auditor’s Report.......................................................................... 61

About us

About Us

Ministry of Labour

IHSA Vision

Develops
legislation and
regulations and is
responsible
for enforcement
and prevention.

Safe and healthy workplaces free from incidents,
injuries, illnesses, or fatalities.

IHSA Mission
To be Ontario’s trusted health and safety resource
for effective sector-specific engagement, education,
products, and services.

Who We Are

What We Do
IHSA provides health and safety training and
services to those who work in the following
industries in Ontario:
Construction
Electrical and Utilities
Transportation
Aggregates

•
•

Infrastructure
Health and Safety
Association

Occupational
Health Clinics for
Ontario Workers
Provides medical
diagnostics, information,
and services to prevent
work-related health
conditions.

Serves the construction,
electrical, utilities,
aggregates, natural gas,
ready-mix concrete,
and transportation
sectors.

Workers Health
and Safety Centre

Serves the
forestry, mining,
pulp and paper,
and printing
sectors.
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Six designated HSAs
provide training,
education, and
services.

Ready-mix
concrete
Natural gas.

Workplace
Safety North
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Provides compensation
and return-to-work
supports for injured
workers. Funds the health
and safety system
through employer
premiums.

Health & Safety
Associations

IHSA is a safe workplace association as designated
under section 22.5 of the Occupational Health and
Safety Act. We are part of Ontario’s occupational
health and safety system, which is a network of key
partners—each with a specific role to play.

•
•
•
•

Workplace Safety
and Insurance Board

Public Services
Health and Safety
Association
Serves the public service 
sector including health and
community care, education
and culture, municipal and
provincial government,
and public
safety.

Workplace
Safety and
Prevention Services
Serves the
agricultural, industrial,
manufacturing,
and service
sectors.

Provides training
for workers, Joint Health
and Safety Committee
members, supervisors,
and employers in
every sector.

ihsa.ca

IHSA Membership
Companies and their employees automatically become
members of IHSA by registering their business with
the Ontario Workplace Safety and Insurance Board
(WSIB) and paying premiums in one of the rate
groups IHSA serves.

Electrical
and utilities

8%

58,417 FTEs

Members get access to our health and safety
training, products, and services at no charge or at a
reduced price. As part of the provincial health and
safety system, members can be sure that our
services adhere to the regulatory requirements
and compliance standards established by
the Ontario Ministry of Labour (MOL) and
Prevention Office.

In 2017, IHSA membership
included over 134,000
active firms and 755,000 .
full-time workers in Ontario.
IHSA Membership Increase
(2016 to 2017)

Total
Active Firms
2016 2017
133,247 134,438

+0.89%

ihsa.ca

Transportation

35

%

266,966 FTEs
Construction

57

%

430,049 FTEs

Total FTEs
2016 2017
723,843 755,432

+4.36%

Source: WSIB/EIW 2017 Snapshot current to March 2018 and 2016 Snapshot current to March 2017
NOTE: Membership is based on the number of FTEs or full-time equivalent workers. It is an estimate
based on the average hourly wage for the rate group and the insurable earnings for the calendar year,
assuming a person works an average of 2,000 hours per year.

2017 IHSA Annual Report
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About us

IHSA Membership
Construction Rate Groups (2016 to 2017)
64,753
61,099

764 – Homebuilding
12,606
10,280

755 – Non-exempt Partners

2017
2016

22,092
21,759

751 – Siding and Outside Finishing
6,556
5,582

748 – Formwork and Demolition

8,490
7,741

741 – Masonry

FTEs

14,114
13,388
15,079
14,846
12,950
13,483

737 – Millwrighting and Welding
732 – Heavy Civil
728 – Roofing

2016 2017
406,724 430,049
45,810
43,427
43,630
40,933
47,545
45,076

723 – ICI Construction
719 – Inside Finishing
711 – Roadbuilding and Excavating

+5.73%

73,796
69,057

707 – Mechanical and Sheet Metal
55,721
52,369

704 – Electrical and Incidentals
6,907
7,684

134 – Aggregates

0

10,000 20,000 30,000 40,000

50,000 60,000 70,000

80,000

Full-Time Equivalent Workers (FTEs)

Source: WSIB/EIW 2017 Snapshot current to March 2018 and 2016 Snapshot current to March 2017
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FTEs

Transportation Rate Groups (2016 to 2017)
689 – Waste Materials Recycling

2016 2017
257,744 266,966

10,416
9,778
49,322
48,333

681 – Lumber and Builders Supply

+3.58%

15,768
16,364

584 – School Buses

10,738
9,933

580 – Misc. Transport Industries

22,465
21,145

577 – Courier Services

94,817
92,217

570 – General Trucking
27,382
26,956

560 – Warehousing
553 – Air Transport Services

14,996
13,967

551 – Air Transport Industries

16,011
13,609

2017
2016

5,051
5,442

497 – Ready-Mix Concrete

0 10,000 20,000 30,000 40,000 50,000 60,000 70,000 80,000 90,000 100,000

Full-Time Equivalent Workers (FTEs)

Electrical and Utilities Rate Groups (2016 to 2017)

838 – Natural Gas Distribution

2017
2016

5,572
5,704

20,250
20,299
19,865
21,415

835 – Oil, Power, and Water Distribution
833 – Electric Power Generation

2016 2017
59,375 58,417

-1.61%

12,730
11,957

830 – Power and Telecommunication Lines

0

5,000

10,000

15,000

20,000

FTEs

25,000

Full-Time Equivalent Workers (FTEs)

ihsa.ca
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Strategic Plan

Strategic Plan
IHSA aligned its three-year Strategic Plan (2015–2017) with
the prevention priorities in the Ministry of Labour’s Healthy
and Safe Ontario Workplaces. Having an integrated strategy
helped us both accomplish our goals by focusing our health
and safety resources where they were needed most and where
they could have the most impact.
The initiatives outlined in our strategic plan became the
backbone of our work over the last three years. This 2017
Annual Report will cover the highlights, track the progress,
and illuminate the accomplishments we have made toward
achieving the goals we set out three years ago.

2,377
visitors came to
the strategic plan
section on the IHSA
website in 2017
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Safety
Culture

Enhance
Service
Delivery

Vision:
Safe and healthy
workplaces free
from incidents,
injuries, illnesses,
or fatalities

Since 2017 was the final year for our current plan, it was a
good time to reflect on what had been achieved and what was
yet to be done. To that end, IHSA instituted a continuous cycle
of review and adjustment to its strategic plan process.
This was the third strategic plan that IHSA
had implemented since the organization
was formed in 2010. It will provide a
stepping stone for the next threeyear strategic plan, which we will
develop in 2018. Through the
review process, we decided
that our next plan should
put more emphasis on
stakeholder engagement and
getting their input into IHSA’s
future direction.

Integrated
Services

Collaborative
Partnership

Quality
Assurance

Develop
Sustainable
Business
Target
Those of
Greatest
Need
Vulnerable
Workers

Continuous
Improvement

Measurement
and Evaluation

Revenue
Generation
Standards
Small
Business

High
Standards

ihsa.ca

For the last few years, IHSA has been focusing on the message, Keep your
Promise. The idea was to keep the promise you made to your co-workers, family,
friends, and others to come home safe and sound at the end of the workday.
IHSA has been promoting this idea through a comprehensive marketing
campaign that involves both sight (e.g., bus ads) and sound (e.g., radio ads). The
campaign encourages people not only to think about keeping this promise but
also to find out how IHSA can help them do it.
As we move forward, we will take this concept to the next step: Keep Your
Promise—Do Your Part. We all have a role to play in making sure health and
safety improvements are made at every level of work. This annual report will
demonstrate how we have been progressing along this path and helping our
members work safe for life.

Enzo Garritano (centre) receives the Industry
Ally Award from Gary Van Bolderen (left) and Ian
Cunningham (right) at the COCA AGM

In addition, we want to ensure that our members and customers are familiar
with the distinctive services we offer. We have been working hard to establish
ourselves as the primary source for industry-specific health and safety
training, products, services, and guidance. IHSA’s strength is our staff—one
that is comprised of industry subject-matter experts with a tremendous
number of years of experience in the type of work they are now helping
to make healthier and safer.

Message from the CEO

Message from the CEO

This annual report, much like our brand, represents our company’s
attributes, values, and strengths. It reflects our efforts to serve our
membership and the health and safety community in Ontario. So take
a look and see what IHSA has been doing over the past year and
what we hope to achieve in the future as we do our part to improve
health and safety outcomes in the province.

Enzo Garritano
President and CEO

ihsa.ca
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Message from the Board

Message from the Board of Directors
Twenty-seventeen was an extremely busy year for the
Infrastructure Health and Safety Association. A large
number of requests were received for training and increased
effort was put towards increasing brand awareness across
Ontario. These two areas of focus were not the only ones—
at every level, IHSA continued to make improvements in
providing our customers with better service and more
health and safety resources.
In 2017, IHSA worked hard to solidify its brand presence
and continue to build its reputation as a trusted training
and service provider. Having the authority to grant the
Certificate of Recognition (COR™) in Ontario, led to an
increased number of contacts and interactions. IHSA’s
advertising initiatives, especially in regards to working at
heights training, allowed the association to extend its reach
to the general public.

IHSA and its stakeholders, particularly our members whom we
serve. It is our role to provide a sense of continuity between
these groups while ensuring that nothing is overlooked in
terms of new ideas or directions. That’s one of the ways that
we do our part.
Looking ahead to 2018, our board will push forward with
continued momentum. Representation within the current
board membership is extremely strong and we are very
encouraged by the advancement of IHSA’s strategic priorities.

Executive Committee of the Board of Directors

These efforts to reach the general public are essential in
driving home the importance of health and safety in Ontario
workplaces, raising the social unacceptability of workplace
injuries, and having more workers returning home safe each
day. It helps IHSA change the safety culture not only in the
workplace but also in the home.
The board saw a few changes in 2017 with some new
members joining our ranks and others moving on to other
challenges. Our board is the link between those who work at

8

2017 IHSA Annual Report

Joe Redshaw

David Johnston

Michael Frolick

ihsa.ca

IHSA Board of Directors
Electrical
Glen Drewes.......................... International Brotherhood of
		
Electrical Workers, Local 402
David Johnston ............................................... Toronto Hydro
Tom Nicholls..................................... Power Workers’ Union
General ICI
Robert Love......................................... Alberici Constructors
Tony Di Maria..........................Brick and Allied Craft Union
Heavy Civil & Aggregates
Darrin Husack.................................................ConDrain Group
Joe Redshaw................ International Union of Operating
		
Engineers, Local 793

Mechanical
Tom Lachance.............. TESC Contracting Company Ltd.
Don Schultz......Millwrights Regional Council of Ontario
Residential
Claudio Mazzotta....................Drywall Acoustic Lathing &
Insulation, Local 675
Transportation
Michael Frolick.......................Transpro Freight Systems Ltd.
Amanda Hall ............................. Midland Transport Limited
Brian MacDonald..............Teamsters (Canada – Local 91)
Len Poirier...................................................... UNIFOR Canada

IHSA’s success continues to
demonstrate why it is a leading
advocate for working safely in Ontario.
– David Johnston
Co-Chair, IHSA Board of Directors

In 2017, outgoing board
members were recognized for
their contributions. Those who
attended IHSA’s Annual General
Meeting are pictured below.
Other outgoing BOD
members were Mike
Archambault (l) and Bob Kerr (r)

Jack Dowding (left), Joe Pessoa (centre), and Michael Dauncey (right) received Member Appreciation Certificates at the 2017 AGM for their years of
service on IHSA’s Board of Directors

ihsa.ca
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Target those of greatest need

Target those of greatest need
As part of our strategic plan, IHSA identified three targets
that had the greatest need of our services:
1. Vulnerable workers
2. Small businesses
3. Workers who perform high-hazard activities
Over the past three years, IHSA has worked hard to identify
and provide resources for those in these three key target
areas. By reaching these groups with our safety message,
we could have the most impact on reducing the number of
occupational diseases and traumatic injuries in our sectors.

Future Building is an annual, interactive, three-day
exhibition organized by the Ontario Construction
Secretariat. Through its sponsorship, IHSA
is able to reach students by utilizing
interactive displays and handing
out health and safety material
and resources. Over 5,000
students return home knowing
the importance of workplace
safety.

Vulnerable Workers
Vulnerable workers are those who have a greater exposure
than most to conditions hazardous to health and safety and
who lack the power to alter those conditions. This includes
young workers, new workers, and new Canadians.

Young Workers
Young workers are those who are less than 25 years of age.
They can be vulnerable to harm in the workplace because
they may lack experience, they may not know their rights,
and they may be reluctant to ask questions of co-workers
and supervisors.
By sponsoring some of Canada’s largest technology and
trade events for kids, teens, and young adults, IHSA is able to
promote safe work procedures and the importance of lifelong
health and safety training to this new generation of workers.

Vulnerable
Workers

10

Future Building

The students took home IHSA
backpacks and other safetyrelated material

5,000
students attended
the Future Builders
event held .
in Ottawa
May 16–18, 2017

HighSmall
Hazard Business
Activities
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Line Crew Ground Support (LCGS)
Training Program
In 2017, IHSA continued to support the LCGS
program based out of Cambrian College, in
partnership with Gezhtoojig Employment and
Training. Over a 15-week period, young Aboriginal
workers are taught in-class safety courses and are
given hands-on instruction to prepare them for
careers in the powerline and construction trades.
Courses include ladder handling, safe pole handling,
pole line construction, working at heights, and
mobile crane operator training.

The Line Crew Ground Support
program is designed and delivered
by industry experts to equip
participants with work-ready skills
and over 25 industry-recognized
certificates.
Dennis Smith
Powerline Apprenticeship
and Training Manager

In early 2018,
a new LCGS
program will begin
in Thunder Bay

Keep

Your Promise
It will prepare
crews for the
construction of the
Wataynikaneyap
Power Transmission
Line

ihsa.ca

Workers who successfully
complete their training
can do their part by
applying what they
learned when they go
back to work.
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Target those of greatest need

2,300
Skills Ontario
The Ontario Technological Skills
Competition (OTSC) is the county’s largest
skilled trade and technology event. In
2017, it was held at the Toronto Congress
Centre for the first time instead of at RIM
Park in Waterloo. Students from across the
province come to demonstrate their abilities
and compete for provincial honours.
Medalists at the Ontario event move on to
the national competition and maybe even
the world event. With over 20,000 students
in attendance along with family and friends,
this event acts as a showcase for careers in
the skilled trades.

20,000

elementary, high
school and college
students competed
in 68 skilled trade
and technology
contests

students attended
the Skills Ontario
event in May
2017

IHSA was a Platinum Sponsor and unveiled its
new mobile classroom
CTV’s Anwar Knight interviewed
IHSA staff on air and took part in
our pole climbing challenge

12
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New Workers
New workers are those who have worked 28 days or less with the
same employer. They are vulnerable to hazards because they may
lack experience and may not be familiar with the jobsite hazards
or health and safety procedures.

3,305

Keep

Your Promise
Supervisors can do
their part by giving new
workers a comprehensive
jobsite orientation before
they start work.

unique
visits to the
orientation
web page in
2017

IHSA‘s Training, Orientation and
Communications web page contains a new
worker orientation checklist

1,135
downloads
of the
checklist in
2017
IHSA developed a Jobsite Hazard Checklist (W021) to
help workers identify on-site hazards

ihsa.ca
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New Canadians

Two Basics of Hearing Protection
e-learning courses were translated into
other languages:

Workers who have newly arrived in Canada
are often hired for high-hazard jobs. They
are vulnerable to injury because they may
not know their rights and may have language
difficulties.
IHSA continues to offer Working at Heights
(WAH) training in 11 other languages
commonly spoken in the construction trades.
The course material has been translated and
an interpreter facilitiates communication
between the students and an IHSA instructor.
Bilingual IHSA instructors deliver courses in
French. These are offered in Ottawa and
Northern Ontario.

WAH Training in Other Languages
(2017)
Languages
Cantonese
Croatian
French
Italian
Mandarin
Polish
Portuguese
Russian
Serbian
Spanish
Turkish
Total

2017 IHSA Annual Report

No. of
Courses
3
5
16
6
5
13
5
7
6
3
5
74

No. of
Participants
20
41
128
35
20
89
22
65
31
15
27
493

• Chinese
(Simplified)
• Chinese
(Traditional)

IHSA’s radio
message about
the WAH training
deadline was
translated into 11
languages
493 students
were trained and
74 courses were
delivered in
another language

•
•
•
•

French
Polish
Portuguese
Spanish

This software reads IHSA’s
web pages aloud to help
those with language issues
or visual disabilities

Audio clips of the
WAH radio message
were added to all
of the WAH training
pages in other
languages

ihsa.ca

IHSA trainer Ken Poole in the bucket truck at SDC

High-Hazard Activities
Those who work in high-hazard areas are at a greater
risk of injury and illness because they are often put in
situations that could cause serious harm or health effects.

Powerline Technician
Apprenticeship Training
Powerline Technicians perform high-hazard work and
often have to deal with difficult working conditions. A
high level of skill, experience, and training is required to
do this job safely.
IHSA is one of a limited number of training delivery
agents designated by the Ministry of Advanced
Education and Skill Development (MAESD) to
deliver all four levels of the Powerline Technician
Apprenticeship (PTA) program.
IHSA’s Skills Development Centre (SDC) in
Mississauga features modern facilities and top-ofthe-line equipment such as an energized three-phase
underground yard, two energized overhead powerlines,
and a confined space simulator.
In addition to the courses offered at the SDC, IHSA
supports powerline technician apprenticeship training
through partnerships with Cambrian College in
Sudbury and the St. Clair College campus in Chatham.
We also make use of another training facility in
Chatham provided by Entegrus Powerlines.

PTA Training by the Numbers (2017)
PTAs Trained at SDC (Levels 1-4)

55

PTAs Trained at St. Clair (Level 1)

10

PTAs Trained at Chatham (Levels 2-4)

ihsa.ca

162

PTAs Trained at Cambrian (Levels 1-2)

Total PTAs Trained in 2017

IHSA helped
train 243
PTA students
in 2017

16
243

IHSA’s PTA Administrator
Zeineb Khiar (l) and IHSA
consultant Kerry Radey (r)
staff a booth during the
Cambrian College Job Fair

Level 1 and 2 PTA graduates
from Cambrian College

IHSA sponsors
a job fair at
Cambrian
College

2017 IHSA Annual Report
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Working at Heights Training
Falling from heights is a leading cause of injuries
and fatalities for IHSA members. Our Working
at Heights – Fundamentals of Fall
Prevention course continues to be
one of our most popular training
external
programs. It provides workers
with the basic knowledge
instructors have
required to work safely when
been approved
exposed to fall hazards.

469

to deliver IHSA’s
WAH course*

Standardized WAH training, which
must be approved by the Chief
Prevention Officer (CPO) of Ontario,
came into effect in 2015. To keep up with the
high demand for this mandatory training, IHSA certified
hundreds of external Associate Training Partners to deliver
our WAH course. By 2017, an important milestone was
reached—over 100,000 workers in Ontario received IHSA’s
CPO-approved WAH training from either us or one of our
training partners.

5,860
of IHSA’s
WAH courses
were delivered
in 2017

51,366
participants
were trained

IHSA’s WAH Training by the Numbers (2017)
WAH Courses Taught by IHSA Instructors

1,304

WAH Courses Taught by IHSA Training Partners 4,556

HighSmall
Hazard Vulnerable
Vulnerable Business
Activities Workers
Workers

Total WAH Courses Delivered in 2017

5,860

Participants Who Attended WAH
Courses at IHSA Facilities

12,609

Participants Who Attended WAH
Courses at Training Partner Facilities

38,757

Total Participants Trained in WAH in 2017

51,366

*From 2015 to 2017
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Reach of WAH Radio Ads (over a five-week period)

WAH Radio Message
The deadline to receive CPO-approved WAH
training was April 1, 2017 (extended to
October 1, 2017 for certain workers).
IHSA’s WAH
To help raise awareness about this
radio message
deadline, IHSA’s President and CEO,
Enzo Garritano, recorded a public
was broadcasted
service announcement. During the
stations
over
month of March, Enzo’s message was
broadcasted over some of the most
throughout
recognized radio stations in Ontario.
Ontario
The result was that IHSA facilitated twice
as many WAH courses in March and external
training partners serviced 20% of their annual
participants during that month.

26

Measurement (ihsa.ca)

2016

(Feb to Mar)

2017

(Feb to Mar)

Difference

Total Pageviews

591,191

787,843

+33%

Total New Users

27,609

38,522

+40%

Total Sessions

50,089

67,924

+36%

New Users registering for WAH

341 		

Sessions to register for WAH
New Users visiting WAH resources
Sessions to visit WAH resources

1,146

+236%

611

2,080

+240%

69

382

+454%

133

665

+400%

Source: Google Analytics over the same five-week period in Feb to Mar 2017
and Feb to Mar 2016

WAH Site-Specific Training
Despite the fact that WAH training is mandatory and must
meet a provincial standard, workers are still dying or suffering
life-altering injuries because of a fall. Our future plans involve
bringing more attention to the importance of site-specific
WAH training. Knowing the specific fall hazards on a site,
learning how to protect against those hazards, and being
trained on the specific fall protection equipment that will be
used is the key to keeping workers safe and reducing the
number of fall-related incidents.

100,000
workers had
received IHSA’s
CPO-approved
WAH course by
early 2017

ihsa.ca
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Transportation Services
Strategy
As part of IHSA’s Strategic Plan 2015–2017, a
commitment was made to do a “deep dive” into the
unique needs of the transportation sector and how
we could better serve our members in this industry. In
2017, we continued to focus our efforts on enhancing,
revising, updating, and promoting transportationrelated training programs, products, and services.
These efforts involved re-engaging with transportation
stakeholders and extending this network to include
new partnerships with organizations like the Ministry
of Transportation (MTO) and WorkSafeBC. Our future
plans for this initiative involve broadening awareness
in five areas that directly impact our members (see
diagram).
In so doing, IHSA hopes to create a positive impact
and generate a greater awareness of activities that
contribute to the prevention of workplace illness,
injuries, and fatalities related to motor-vehicle
incidents (MVIs) and transportationrelated high-hazard activities.

HighSmall
Hazard Vulnerable
Vulnerable Business
Activities Workers
Workers

18

2017 IHSA Annual Report

With these targets in mind, IHSA is seeking
to enhance knowledge on road safety
solutions, increase driver and employer
accountability, and above all, promote an
attitude of change that can contribute to
safe work and driving practices.
Michelle Roberts
Project Director – Transportation

ihsa.ca

Transportation
Strategy Goals

In 2017,
MVIs resulted
in 17 fatalities
for IHSA
members†

In 2017,
distracted
driving caused
6,200 collisions,
which resulted in
87 fatalities*
Distracted
Driving
Facilitation,
Training, and
Learning

Preventing
MVIs

Plans to update
IHSA training
courses will
improve the quality
of professional
drivers and driver
instructors

Broaden
Awareness
in Five
Areas
.

Over 50% of
IHSA’s critical
injuries are from
the transportation
sector, and half of
those are from a
fall†

Fall
Prevention

Driver
Wellness
and Mental
Health
Chronic
Mental Stress
claims are
expected to
increase in
2018

*According to OPP statistics
†According to WSIB data

ihsa.ca
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Target those of greatest need

Small Business
Workers who are employed by a small business can be
exposed to health and safety hazards because the company
may lack the resources needed to control those hazards.
IHSA’s membership is largely made up of small businesses,
which are defined as companies with less than 50 full-time
equivalent (FTE) staff. As the chart shows, 95% of IHSA
member firms have less than 20 full-time employees and 83%
have less than five employees.
The size of this market, combined with differences in
industries, business models, and cultural make-up, makes
reducing risk and eliminating hazards in small businesses a
unique undertaking. However, meeting the unique health and
safety challenges faced by small businesses has been a major
focus for IHSA.

Comparison of IHSA Member Firm Sizes (2016–2017)
Firm Size

2016

2017

1 to 4 Workers

87,774

88,879

+1.26%

5 to 19 Workers

12,797

13,062

+2.07%

20 to 99 Workers

4,493

4,671

+3.96%

884

918

+3.85%

More Than 100 Workers

Difference

IHSA Member Firm Sizes in 2017

More than
100 workers
20-99
workers

4%

1%

918 Firms

4,671 Firms
1-4 workers

83%

88,879
Firms

5-19 workers

12 %

Source: WSIB/EIW 2016 Snapshot current to March 2017 and 2017 Snapshot
current to March 2018
NOTE: Firms with 0 insurable earnings (e.g., independent operators) have been
excluded.

13,062 Firms

95

%

of IHSA member firms have less
than 20 full-time employees

(83% + 12%)
Small
Business

20

HighHazard
Vulnerable
Vulnerable Activities
Workers
Workers
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In 2017, IHSA promoted the
WSIB’s Small Business Health
and Safety Leadership Awards

ihsa.ca

Connecting Consultants
Campaign
The kijiji website is one of the most popular
places to find skilled tradespeople and
residential construction jobs. In 2017, IHSA
developed plans to use location-based kijiji ads
to help our members connect with the IHSA
health and safety consultants assigned to their
region.
Ads for IHSA services will be placed on kijiji
websites in 40 major cities across Ontario.
Interested visitors will then be redirected to
one of five regional microsites based on their
geographic location (North West, North East,
Central, East, and South-West ).

Promote
Digital
Interaction

Drive New
Business

Connecting
Consultants
Campaign
Facilitate
Direct
Contact

Develop New
Partnerships

These microsites will have a unique look,
featuring imagery from the region, testimonials
from local clients, and information on any
pertinent events going on in the area. Most
importantly, they will have contact information
for local IHSA consultants and/or regional
managers.
In this way, our regional consultants will have
direct contact with IHSA members in their area
and be able to find out what they need from us
and how we can help them.
The pilot project of this campaign is
scheduled to launch in 2018.
Kingston-based IHSA
consultants Jennifer Buxton (l)
and Scott Laing (r) interact with
small contractors in the area

ihsa.ca
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Enhance Sevice Delivery
To meet our goal of targeting those of greatest need, IHSA must
enhance our service delivery by:
1. Promoting safety culture
2. Extending our reach
3. Collaborating with system partners

Promote Safety Culture

attended
IHSA’s 2017
AGM

Creating a culture of health and safety is an important part of
any health and safety strategy. At IHSA, we rely on many of our
industry networks, as well as social marketing and community
outreach, to help us promote the safety message.

101 awards

and COR™
certificates were
handed out at
the AGM

Annual General Meeting
IHSA’s 2017 Annual General Meeting took place
on October 4, 2017. This year’s event focused on
increasing IHSA’s brand presence and reputation as a
trusted training provider by extending its reach to the
general public.
Guest speakers included Amanda
MacDuffee and Joe O’Shea from
the Kingston Regional LabourManagement Committee. They later
accepted the Gil Samson Award on
behalf of the committee. The keynote
speaker was Norm Keith, a labour and
human rights lawyer who presented
on cannabis and other drugs in the
workplace.

Promote
Safety
Culture
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135 people

Collaborate
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with System
Vulnerable
Our
Partners
Workers
Reach
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AGM Awards by the Numbers (2017)
Certificates of Recognition (COR™)		

71

Transportation Achievement Awards		

17

President’s Awards			

9

ZeroQuest® Awards			

1

John M. Beck Award			

1

Roy A. Phinnemore Award		

1

Gil Samson Award			

1

Laycon Construction Services (l)
and Harris Steel (r) were two of the
71 companies that received their
CORTM certificates at the 2017 AGM in
recognition of a well-functioning health
and safety management system

ihsa.ca

Transportation Achievement
Awards are presented to member firms

The President’s Award

Recognition Awards are

is given to companies that achieve
milestones for hours worked without a
lost-time injury (LTI).

presented to outstanding members in our
Labour-Management Network.

Penske Logistics was one of 17
companies that received a Transportation
Achievement Award at the 2017 AGM

Guelph Hydro was recognized for a
million hours worked without an LTI and
was one of nine companies that received
the award at the 2017 AGM

Jim Lafontaine (centre right) of Dufferin
Construction was recognized for his many
years of service as Management Co-chair of
the Section 21 Committee for Construction

The Roy A. Phinnemore Award

The John M. Beck Award is

The Gil Samson Award is presented

is presented each year to an individual who
has made significant contributions to health
and safety.

presented annually to a project-based joint
health and safety committee active in the
Ontario construction industry.

each year to a Labour-Management Committee
that has contributed to the advancement of
occupational health and safety.

that have consistently operated with a losttime injury frequency below the rate group
average for three consecutive years.

In 2017, the award was presented to
Alan Wilder for his work on behalf of the
Boilermakers Trade and his 22 years of
service on the Windsor Regional LabourManagement Committee

ihsa.ca

In 2017, the award was presented to
the Plan Group Milton District Hospital
Project JHSC for its creativity, leadership,
innovation, and initiative in promoting
health and safety on the jobsite

In 2017, Joe O’Shea (c) and Amanda MacDuffee
(r) accepted the award on behalf of the Kingston
Regional Committee for its outreach initiatives
with Limestone District School Board, Lowes
Canada, and St. Lawrence College

2017 IHSA Annual Report
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Certificate of Recognition
(COR™)

266

COR™ is a well-established, Canada-wide standard for
measuring and continuously improving workplace health and
safety systems. IHSA brought the COR program to Ontario
and has the exclusive authority to grant COR™ certification in
the province.
Many companies and municipalities that deal with large-scale
infrastructure projects in Ontario now require firms to be
registered in the COR™ program or be certified before they
can bid on contracts.
With each passing year, IHSA sees more
interest in firms that want to actively
pursue the program or better
understand how it can improve
health and safety.

firms
registered for
COR™ in 2017

1,258
firms have
registered for
COR™ since 2011

199
firms were
certified in
2017

COR™ satisfies a
very simple business
philosophy—if you look
after the people in your
organization, then they’ll
look after you.
Blair Chalmers
Rutherford Contracting Ltd

Promote
Safety
Culture
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COR™ courses now online!
COR™ Essentials and Basic Auding Principles are
now available on the e-learning page at ihsa.ca

ihsa.ca

COR™ Internal Auditor Conference
Held on February 28, 2017, this annual conference allows
current and future internal auditors to meet each other and
get valuable information, tools, and experiences to help them
be successful in achieving and maintaining COR™ certiﬁcation.
Sessions included:
• Insider Tips for your Internal Audit
• Hazard Assessment: The Key to a Successful COR™ Cycle
• Effective Project Management
• Mastering Management Review

120
people
attended the
IA conference
in 2017

IHSA COR™ consultants Peter Smith (l),
John Kelly (lc), and Carlos Figueira (r)
answer questions at the IA Conference
along with Eric Hopkins from Metrolinx (rc)

ihsa.ca

COR™ Open House/OGCA
Leadership Day
On March 3, 2017, IHSA once again joined
forces with the Ontario General Contractor’s
Association (OGCA) for their Open House/
Leadership Day. A panel of industry leaders
were on hand to share their stories and
experiences in achieving COR™.
Minister of Labour Kevin Flynn, WSIB President
Thomas Teahen, and Chief Prevention Officer
George Gritziotis also attended to address new
prevention initiatives. Many of the attendees
signed on to the League of Champions, which
is a partnership between the OGCA and
MySafeWork.

COR™ five-day
workshops were
held in 2017
to help those
going through
the certification
process

Audit
capacity for
the COR™
program was
improved by
200% in 2017

The League of Champions promotes
safe work by encouraging people to
sign hockey jerseys as part of their
commitment to safety

160
people attended
the COR™/OGCA
event in 2017

2017 IHSA Annual Report
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Safety Groups
Safety Groups is a program
administered by the Workplace Safety
and Insurance Board (WSIB). Each Safety
Group is made up of companies in the same industry
that come together to share their health and safety
experience and resources and help one another
improve their prevention systems.
IHSA currently sponsors two Safety Groups:
1. Construction/Electrical and Utilities Safety Group
2. Transportation Safety Group.
IHSA also joined forces with PSHSA, WSN, and WSPS
to sponsor a Northern Ontario Safety Group.
Each Safety Group focuses on five key areas and
success is measured by improving in those areas.
If the targets are met, the group as a whole is rewarded
and each member receives a rebate on top of any of
the firms’ standard experience-rating rewards.

In 2017, IHSA undertook a recruitment
campaign using letters, social media, .
and other promotional
tools to bring new
companies to Safety
Groups.

Promote
Safety
Culture

154

firms were
members of the
Transportation
Safety Group in
2017

Rebate for 2016:

$1,523,413
30 new
companies were
recruited by the
CESG for
2018
21 new
companies
were recruited
by the TSG for
2018

Rebate for 2016:

$546,389
Rebate for
Northern
Ontario Safety
Group in 2016:

$1,810,113

Collaborate
Extend
with System
Vulnerable
Our
Partners
Workers
Reach
WSIB Chair Elizabeth Witmer (r) was on hand to present
firms such as Bison Transport with a certificate and their
rebate cheque
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70

firms
were members
of the Construction/
Electrical Safety .
Group in 2017
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IHSA received recognition from the WSIB in 2017 for its
efforts in maintaining successful Safety Groups Programs

ihsa.ca

National Construction
Safety Officer (NCSO)
In 2016, IHSA transitioned its Construction
Health and Safety Officer (CHSO)
certificate to an NCSO certificate. NCSO
certification demonstrates that a person’s
skill level, education, and work effort
has met the requirements of a national
standard. Successful applicants must pass
both a national and a provincial exam.

465
NCSO applications were
received in 2017

269
applicants
successfully passed
the exams in 2017

NCSOs
are qualified to serve as
COR™ Internal Auditors
and health and safety
representatives

103
applicants are scheduled
to write the exams in 2018

In 2017,
the first NCSOs
successfully
completed their
certification

ihsa.ca

As an NCSO, my job is to ensure
that my colleagues are healthy and
safe at work. A safe workplace is
one where workers look out for one
another and care about the work we
do, the people we do it with, and
the environment we do it in. That’s
how I do my part.
Devin Brown, NCSO
HSE Coordinator

2017 IHSA Annual Report
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Center for Construction
Research and Training (CPWR)
On November 2, 2017, the Institute for Work and Health
(IWH), IHSA, and the MOL sponsored an afternoon
session on improving health and safety culture with
construction stakeholders at IHSA’s Voyager Court
location. Dr. Linda Goldenhar is an expert in building a
health and safety culture and climate in construction
workplaces and is the Director of Research and
Evaluation at the CPWR in Silver Spring, Maryland.
She shared with the group her knowledge and the
organization’s free tools and resources that are
available on their website: www.cpwr.com

Dr. Linda Goldenhar
from the CPWR shares
tools and resources for
improving safety culture

IHSA.ca
Magazine
IHSA.ca Magazine is a quarterly
publication that appears in both
print and online as a digital
download. It provides a gateway to
health and safety information for
companies well-versed in IHSA’s
services as well as those new to the
organization.
Our readership has grown steadily
since its creation in the fall of
2010. IHSA has seen the return
of readers from the publications
of our predecessor organizations
as well as those new to our
materials. We send it to subscribers
across the province. It’s full of
valuable prevention information,
enforcement blitz announcements,
and upcoming events.

1,725 copies of
the magazine
were sent to
new subscribers
in 2017
303 new
subscribers
were added
in 2017

12,500
copies
were mailed
directly to
subscribers

50,000 copies
of our magazine
were distributed
in 2017
Promote
Safety
Culture
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Labour-Management
Network

Section 21
Committees*

The 42 health and safety committees
that make up IHSA’s Labour-Management
Network include more than 800 volunteers
from both labour and management.

PLMHSC
Construction

PLMSC
Electrical
Utilities

Members represent different regions throughout Ontario and
various industry trades and sectors. One thing that they
do have in common is a commitment to making Ontario
workplaces safer and healthier.

CLRC

In 2017, the Labour-Management Network consulted
with the Ministry of Labour and system partners on
proposed Employer Accreditation and Safe at Work
Ontario consultations.

Regional
Committees

The network provided information sessions for its
members and stakeholders on new and pending
regulatory change brought about by governing
bodies such as the MOL, ESDC, and MTO, and
on changes to CSA standards or codes.
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

*Designated under section 21 of the OHSA
to assist or advise the Minister of Labour.

ihsa.ca

Barrie
Central Ontario
Hamilton
Kingston
London
Niagara
North Bay
Northwestern
(Thunder Bay)

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Oshawa
Ottawa
Sarnia
Sault Ste. Marie
Sudbury
Timmins
Toronto
Windsor

Trade/Sector
Committees

•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Acoustical Drywall
Boilermakers
Carpenters
Civil Engineering
CLAC
(Christian Labour
Association of Canada)
Commercial Diving
Concrete Floor
Demolition
Electrical
(ECAO/IBEW)
Elevator/Escalator
High-rise Forming
Insulators
Ironworkers/Rodworkers
Masonry

• Millwrights
• Mining and
Aggregates
• Occupational Disease
and Research
• Operating Engineers/
Hoisting
• Painters
• Pipe Trades
• Refrigeration
• Residential
• Roofers
• Service Sector
• Sheet Metal
• Sprinkler
• Tunnelling

2017 IHSA Annual Report
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Regional committees focus on community outreach and events

The LabourManagement
Network
continued
its outreach
to several
school systems
and communities through
participation at numerous
local health and safety
events. Members provided
input on health and safety
resources and initiatives
distributed by IHSA with a
particular focus on culture
change and improvement.
Dean Dunn, Director,
Stakeholder and Client Engagement

Promote
Safety
Culture
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The committee
also hosted a
presentation
from Threads
of Life

On May 19, 2017, the Kingston committee
hosted a buyers of construction seminar
with 18 people in attendance

The London
committee
participated in events
with Fanshawe
College and the
Lifestyle Home Show

From June 13–15, 2017, the Northwestern
committee participated in a Carpenters
Apprentice Competition at the new
Carpenters Union Local 1669 facility in
Thunder Bay

3,000
people in
The Sarnia
attendance
committee
participated
in the annual Emergency
Preparedness Day and
provided local students
with health and safety
information

ihsa.ca

61 people
attended and
39 companies
received
awards

What will
you miss
with a
phone in
your hand?
Work Smart. Work Safe. Put
your phone away on jobsites.
Being aware of the hazards
around you is one way to
keep your promise of
returning home safe to

your loved ones
every day. No text
is important
enough to
be your
very last.

P050

On November 10, 2017, the Timmins committee co-hosted the
annual Safety Awards night where local area contractors were
recognized for exceptional safety records

The Kingston
committee hosted a
half-day seminar on
Designated Substance
Reports (DSRs) for
local contractors

ihsa.ca

The Hamilton and Niagara committees helped create a
Texting on the Jobsite Awareness Poster (P050) to prevent
distractions

70
people in
attendance

The Toronto
committee held
its annual Health and
Safety Symposium, which
included a mock trial and
presentations on hearing
protection, respiratory
protection, and gas detection

30
buyers in
attendance

The Ottawa
committee co-hosted
a half-day seminar on
information for buyers
of construction

2017 IHSA Annual Report
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Trade and sector committees develop targeted health and safety resources
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The Concrete Floor
committee has
distributed more than
600 copies of their
Concrete Finishers
Health and Safety
Manual (M073)

M073

M073

ORY

HEALTH & SAFETY ADVIS
Tower Crane Hoist Brakes

Hazard

tower cranes
Labour (MOL) found that
by the Ontario Ministry of
brakes of a
Recent incidents investigated
brakes were engaged. If the
their loads when the hoist
public as well
were not completely holding
to workers and the general
a load, it can result in injury
required
tower crane hoist fail to hold
c regarding the procedure
instructions are very speciﬁ
get an
as property damage. Manufacturer
followed to ensure that brakes
These procedures must be
to test new brake components.
application.
reach full brake
of the friction surface and
adequate contact pattern

Controls
below:
Follow the safe work practices
that does not
maintained in a condition
• The tower crane must be
endanger a worker.
brake
must be followed to test new
• Manufacturer’s instructions
service.
tower crane alignment into
linings before to putting the
worker to
inspected by a competent
• The tower crane must be
capacity
handle the rated alignment
determine whether it can
conditions.
any defects or hazardous
of the load and to identify
crane must have at least
tower
the
for
part
• Every replacement
the part it is replacing.
the same safety factor as
record of all
crane must keep a permanent
• The owner of the tower
repairs and
on the crane as well as all
inspections and tests performed
crane.
modiﬁcations made to the

Location & Sectors

sector
Ontario’s Residential Highrise
Tower cranes are utilized throughout
(ICI) construction projects.
Commercial, and Institutional

and in many Industrial,

Regulatory Requirements

outline the
regulation (O. Reg. 213/91)
154 of the Construction Projects
Sections 93, 94, 95, 152, and
cranes in particular.
equipment in general and
regulatory requirements for
Health and Safety Committee
Forming Labour-Management
A publication of the Highrise
Health & Safety Association
in partnership with the Infrastructure
July 2017

0A1 Canada
400, Mississauga, ON, L4W
5110 Creekbank Road, Suite
www.ihsa.ca
625 0100 F 905 625 8998
T 1 800 263 5024 T 905

W456

The Highrise
Forming
committee
completed a
health and safety
advisory on
tower crane hoist
brakes (W456)

From
March 7–9, 2017, the
Commercial Diving
committee offered
a Dive Supervisor
Training program

Promote
Safety
Culture
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The Elevator/
Escalator
committee
created a Jobsite
Hazard Checklist
for Service Work
(W021)

Collaborate
Extend
with System
Vulnerable
Our
Partners
Workers
Reach

2017 IHSA Annual Report

The Masonry committee participated in a
demonstration of dust control equipment
and techniques and worked on safety
talks for hand-held masonry saws

ihsa.ca

The Residential committee helped IHSA develop the Fall
Protection on Sloped Roofs (IHSA053) best practices document

The Roofers committee worked on a safe practice guideline for
photovoltaic systems, which will be published in 2018
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The Electrical (ECAO/
IBEW) committee,
the Elevator/Escalator
committee, and the Pipe
Trades committee all
completed MSD guidelines
for their sectors
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Enhance Service Delivery

Extend Our Reach
In 2017, IHSA continued to focus on
extending our reach to new audiences
in creative and innovative ways. By
broadening our marketing strategy to
include the general public, IHSA was
able to deliver the safety message
to entire families, not just workers.
This had the effect of sparking the
conversation about the importance of
occupational health and safety with
loved ones, which gave workers more
incentive to come home safe at the
end of the day.
IHSA’s strategy of disseminating
creative content through popular
media formats and major
communication distributors
has allowed us to increase our
brand recognition in much larger
percentages than the industry
standard (i.e., an 18 to 20% annual
audience growth for IHSA vs. a 7%
national average*).
*As per Google Analytics statistics for
Occupational Health and Safety organizations

Extend
Our
Reach
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Keep Your Promise
Campaign

IHSA’s KYP campaign uses visual
storytelling techniques aimed at a general
audience to encourage discussion about
workplace health and safety

Capitalizing on the momentum gained with the
launch of the Keep Your Promise (KYP) campaign in
2016, IHSA took the opportunity to expand on it in
2017. The IHSA bus wrap, which gained a lot of buzz
on certain routes in the GTA, was extended from the
Toronto Transit Commission (TTC) to 10 other transit
systems in the following cities:
•
•
•
•

Barrie
Burlington
Hamilton
London

• Oakville
• Ottawa
• St. Catharines

• Sudbury
• Thunder Bay
• York Region

IHSA’s marketing
efforts have
increased its
audience base by

18 to 20%
annually

ihsa.ca

Trade Shows
and Events
IHSA takes part in many
In 2017, IHSA
professional trade shows,
demonstrations, and events
staffed a booth
each year that connect IHSA
at over 30 trade
products and services with
shows and events
those who need the most
support. In 2017, IHSA attended
more than 30 of these events
with apprentices, college students,
indigenous workers, and other groups who
work in the industries we serve. We provide health
and safety resources, information, product samples, and
promotional items to reinforce the safety message and
reduce hazards in our workplaces.

Keep

Your Promise
IHSA consultants are
subject-matter experts
who do their part by
establishing IHSA as a
trusted health and
safety resource.

ihsa.ca

Day of
Mourning
Each year, IHSA
recognizes the National
Day of Mourning on
April 28th. It is not
just a day to remember
and honour those
whose lives were lost or
who were injured due
to a workplace tragedy.
It’s also a day to renew our commitment to
improving occupational health and safety in this
province and prevent further injuries, illnesses, and
fatalities.

2017 IHSA Annual Report
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Social Media
IHSA has been actively engaged in
various social media channels since
2012. Our presence on LinkedIn
and Twitter has grown considerably
over the years and subscriptions to
our monthly newsletter, 2-Minute
News, continues to increase. Our
YouTube Channel, while still in its
infancy, has been attracting viewers
at a substantial rate. As we expand
upon our video content, YouTube will
become an effective tool for raising
awareness on topics that are relevant
to our membership.

2 New
Followers
Daily
2,914
Retweets

Extend
Our
Reach
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3,650
Followers
35,021
Impressions
485
Engagements

Twitter
@IHSAnews
4,107 Followers
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2-Minute
News

LinkedIn

7,557
Subscribers

15% more
followers
than in
2016

1,169 New
Subscribers

Top 3 Articles
1. Registration for COR™ Internal
Auditor Conference
2. Clarification on Regulation 834
3. IHSA.ca Magazine, V. 17, Issue 1

Top 3 Posts

8% more
followers
than in
2016

1. Jobsite Hazard
Checklist (W021)
2. Construction Health
and Safety Manual
(M029)
3. Ladder Handling
Hands-On Program

157 Subscribers
+10,000 Views

Top 3 Tweets

Top 3 Videos

1. Get the new app
2. Role of a Supervisor
3. IHSA.ca Magazine

1. WAH Expectations
2. WAH Elements
3. 2017 Skills Ontario

ihsa.ca

IHSA.ca Website

New website design in 2017

On January 1, 2017, IHSA launched its new
responsive ecommerce website. Whether on a
desktop computer, tablet, or mobile device, the
new website will adjust itself to fit the screen—
giving visitors the best possible browsing
experience.
The new home page features a screen-wide
banner with alternating images and navigation
menus located above and below. As you scroll
down the page, sections are accentuated using
different colours and icons.
The new website gives customers around-theclock availability to create accounts, order
products, and register for training. Finding
products and signing up for training has never
been easier. There’s even a new Inclement
Weather Notice section that advises customers
of any potential course cancellations.

Most Visited Pages (2017)

In 2017, the IHSA
website had

352,663 new
users, a 12%
increase from
2016

In 2017, the IHSA
website had over

7.2 million
pageviews, a

17% increase
from 2016

1.

Training Course List

1.

Safety Talks and JSAs

2.

IHSA Shopping Cart

2.

NCSO Application Guide

Training Services

3.

COR™ Program
Guidelines

3.

4. WHMIS Quiz
5.

IHSA My Account

496,245
pageviews
in 2017

6. Course Search

4. Safety Talk: Eye
Protection
5.

COR™ Audit Tool

4,618
downloads
in 2017

7.

Products

8.

Free Product Downloads

6. NCSO Application
Form

9.

Safety Talks

7.

Safety Talk: Housekeeping

8.

COR™ Application Form

9.

Safety Talks Manual (V005)

10. Training Registration

Source: Google Analytics from January 1, 2017
to December 31, 2017

ihsa.ca

Downloads (2017)

10. Safety Talk: Hand Protection
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Collaborate with System Partners
Ontario Ministry of Labour
(MOL) and Prevention Office
IHSA works with the MOL and Prevention Office to
provide-sector specific support and resources for
their health and safety initiatives. While the MOL
shines a broad light on health and safety for the
province through the lens of enforcement, IHSA and
other health and safety associations focus in on
prevention solutions through training, products, and
other services.
IHSA’s Labour-Management Network of health
and safety committees works directly to inform
and engage with the Minister, MOL staff, and the
Chief Prevention Officer. We also develop and
provide training that meets provincial standards set
by the MOL.

Collaborate
Promote
with System Vulnerable
Safety
Partners
Workers
Culture
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In 2017, Minister Flynn
attended the Electrical
Section 21 Committee to
hear about high-voltage
electrical safety issues,
challenges, and successes

2017 IHSA Annual Report

Extend
Our
Reach

In 2017, IHSA staff
provided support and .
subject-matter expertise on
proposed regulatory changes
and system-wide initiatives

IHSA participates
in the Health and
Safety Partners
Communications
Forum, which allows
system partners to
share information and
align promotional
campaigns

IHSA provided
training and
resources that
aligned with
MOL blitzes and
initiatives

IHSA worked
directly with MOL
staff to align
prevention and
communication
efforts

IHSA’s Wait for the Wave
Poster (P051) supported
the MOL’s struck-by blitz
for construction in 2017

ihsa.ca

At IHSA’s High-Risk Pavilion, safe climbing methods were
demonstrated and short presentations were provided on
topics such as working at heights and COR™

Partners in
Prevention (PIP)
Held annually, Partners in Prevention is
a large national conference, and several
regional events, which are hosted by one of
our system partner associations, Workplace
Safety and Prevention Services (WSPS).
Each year, IHSA provides tradeshow
displays, demonstrations, speakers, and
other resources for this conference.

In 2017, IHSA
introduced the
first “High-Risk
Pavilion” to the PIP
conference

5,000
people—including
delegates,
speakers, and
exhibitors—took
part in the 2017 PIP

ihsa.ca

IHSA’s Dan Monteith (centre)
presents at a regional PIP
event in Niagara Falls
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Employment and Social
Development Canada
(ESDC)
The ESDC Labour Program is responsible for
protecting the rights and well-being of workers
and employers in federally regulated workplaces.
For the past six years, IHSA and other partner
associations have provided support to federal
firms at the annual Federal Labour Program Open
House, which is held at the Centre for Health and
Safety Innovation (CHSI).

300
people attended
the 2017 ESDC
Partners included Open House—
CCOHS, OHCOW, the largest
turnout yet
MTO, OPP, and

IHSA Ergonomist Peter Vi gives a presentation on evaluating fatigue

WSPS

IHSA’s Dean Dunn (l) and Doug Heintz (r) provide information and resources
Collaborate
Promote
with System Vulnerable
Safety
Partners
Workers
Culture
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Fleet Safety
Council (FSC)
The FSC is an association of driver
trainers and safety professionals who
work to promote safety within the
transportation, transport, bus, and coach
industries. Each year, IHSA provides
administrative support for the FSC
Annual Educational Conference. Our staff provides
speakers, suggests topics, and provides promotion
for the event.

IHSA staff
manage the FSC’s
website, Twitter
feed, and LinkedIn
Discussion Group

Attendees
at the FSC
Conference took
part in lectures,
discussions, and
activities related
to driver safety,
telematics,
regulatory change,
and vehicle safety

Charlie Charalambous,
Conference Committee
Chair, presented a
certificate of appreciation
to the Ministry of
Transportation for their
continued support of
the FSC

180 people

600 FSC
members form .
8 regional chapters
throughout
Ontario

attended
the 26th Annual
FSC Educational
Conference in
2017

The Hamilton Chapter of the Fleet Safety Council presented its Safe Driver of
the Year Award to Mike Lotakow from Verspeeten Cartage

ihsa.ca
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Threads of Life
Also known as the Association for Workplace Tragedy
Family Support, Threads of Life is a Canadian charity
dedicated to supporting families after a workplace
fatality, life-altering injury, or occupational disease. Each
year, Threads of Life presents a series of 5k walks all over
Canada called Steps for Life. IHSA acts as a community
sponsor for these walks, which raise awareness of
workplace tragedies and serve as fundraisers for family
support programs and services. In 2017, IHSA employees
were involved in Steps for Life Walks in Timmins,
Sudbury, Kingston, Mississauga, and Toronto.

200 people took
part in the 2017
Toronto walk,
which raised
over $27,000

The Timmins TOL
Committee,
co-chaired by IHSA
staff, received the
Threads Community
Action Award in
2017
TOL increased
public awareness of
its services by giving
presentations to
IHSA’s regional
labour-management
committees
150 people took
part in the 2017
Kingston walk,
which raised over
$20,000
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IHSA’s Steps for Life Team for Toronto (top) raised a
total of $1,300 and was in the top five in Toronto for
money raised
At the Steps for Life Walk in Kingston (right), Valerie
Thompson (far right) gave a heartfelt presentation on the
loss of her husband Tim, who died after falling into a trench

ihsa.ca

Other Collaborations
Legislation App
IHSA partnered with the Canadian Centre
for Occupational Health and Safety (CCOHS)
to create a Construction Health and Safety
Legislation app. Information on 50 key topics
will help Ontarians reference and understand
their legal obligations in a plain-language
format. The topics relate to sections of the
Construction Projects regulation (O. Reg.
213/91) and link to relevant IHSA and CCOHS
products and resources.

The app is
also available
in French

The app was
downloaded
over 9,000
times in 2017

Your Guide to Construction Health
and Safety Legislation

Mental Health Courses
IHSA partnered with Workplace Safety Prevention Services
(WSPS) and Workplace Safety North (WSN) to allow its members
to take Mental Health First Aid facilitated by WSPS and WSN
instructors who have been trained and certified through Mental
Health First Aid Canada.

Spinal Cord Injury Awareness
In October 2017, IHSA partnered with Spinal Cord
Injury Ontario (SCIO) to bring awareness to the
problem of critical injuries and the resources
available for those who have suffered an injury to
their spinal cord.

11 people each week in Ontario
sustain a spinal cord injury at work
IHSA/WSPS Warehousing Seminar
In partnership with WSPS, IHSA hosted a
Warehouse Safety Conference
in Mississauga on February
22, 2017. Attendees learned
about recent changes to the
legislation and how to avoid
hazards in warehouses and
distribution centres.

Votre guide de la législation en matière
de santé et securité en construction
Application designed and maintained by
Application conçue et maintenue par

ihsa.ca
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Develop a Sustainable Business
IHSA specializes in health and safety training for high-hazard work activities in Ontario. Since
training is the backbone of our business, we make sure that it aligns with new standards and
regulation changes. We continually evaluate the quality of our programs and the proficiency of
our instructors to make sure that our members get the most out of our deliverables. Our health
and safety products and resources, which are purchased or downloaded by people throughout
Canada and around the world, are also held to a high standard in terms of content and design.

9,991 IHSA
courses were
delivered in
2017

Training
As new training standards and regulation changes are introduced in Ontario, IHSA must continue
to develop new training courses and ensure our current offerings are up-to-date. To align with the
Working at Heights Training Standard, which came into force on April 1, 2015, IHSA developed a
new half-day WAH Refresher course that will come into effect in 2018. Workers must refresh their
WAH training every three years.

4,442
3,860
3,628
3,084

Basics of Supervising
Traffic Control—Temporary Work Zones

Quality
Vulnerable
Assurance
Workers

participants
received
IHSA courses
in 2017

50,703
48,527

Working at Heights

Training

94,523

JHSC Certification—Part One

1,764
1,201

Defensive Driving—G Class Driver

1,502
1,178

2017

JHSC Certification—Part Two (Construction)

1,380
796

2016

Hoisting and Rigging

1,251
1,338

Lift Truck Operator

1,137
1,417

COR™ Essentials

1,131
1,640
1,116
1,321

Products
and
Resources

School Bus Driver
Improvement

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000 50,000

Number of Participants
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In addition, new IHSA courses were developed for the suspended
access equipment (SAE) regulation changes, which came into effect
on January 1, 2017. These changes meant new training requirements
for those who use, install, and inspect SAE, suspended work platform
systems, and boatswain’s (or bosun’s) chairs.
In 2017, IHSA developed three new SAE courses that are now available
to members:
1. Suspended Access Equipment—Planners
2. Suspended Access Equipment—Users
3. Suspended Work Platform Systems—Installers
In 2018, IHSA will be transitioning its Window Cleaning course to a
Boatswain’s Chair training program.

Keep

Your Promise
Owners and employers can
do their part by making
sure their workers have
the training they need
to recognize health and
safety hazards and protect
themselves from illness
and injury.

ihsa.ca

IHSA developed
three new SAE
courses that meet
the legislated training
requirements
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Mobile Classroom
IHSA’s new Mobile Classroom was
unveiled at the 2017 Skills Ontario event
and was subsequently used at the
Partners in Prevention Conference.
This new movable facility is truly
impressive and we look forward to
putting it on the road right across the
province. With its size and versatility,
we are able to undertake most training
including hands-on programs.

Online Training
In addition to developing new training
or updating current training, IHSA
has been looking at ways to make it
easier for our members to access our
training.
In 2017, IHSA offered new courses and
training aids online. The e-learning
page of our website now features
online versions of our COR™ Essentials
and Basic Auditing Principles courses.
In addition, two hearing protection
presentations were translated into six
other languages and are available for
free.

Training

46

Quality
Vulnerable
Assurance
Workers

Products
and
Resources
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IHSA’s new Mobile Classroom, which made its debut
at Skills Ontario, allows us to offer training when and
where our members need it

ihsa.ca

Commitment to Quality
185 audits of our

Quality assurance is a cornerstone of IHSA’s strategic plan.
Several processes are in place to ensure that our products,
services, and educational programs help our stakeholders
comply with health and safety legislation and eliminate injuries,
illnesses, and fatalities:

training programs
and training
providers have
been carried out
since 2015

1.

Our health and safety resources are created by IHSA subjectmatter experts who consult with industry stakeholders and
regulatory agencies to ensure that the information is accurate
and relevant to our industries.
2. Audits are performed on our training programs and training
providers to ensure that the courses are being delivered
consistently and that learning objectives are being met.
3. We measure and evaluate the learning experiences of
participants to ensure that our training effectively supports
the knowledge and skills needed to work safely.
4. For some of our training courses, pre-and post-tests are
given to participants in order to quantify how much they’ve
learned (see table below).

99.7% of
students who
completed IHSA’s
WAH program
would recommend
it to others*

Higher scores
achieved on the
post-test indicate
a significant
improvement in
knowledge gained

Increase in Knowledge Gained
Course Name
+33%

Communication Skills for
Supervising Health & Safety

Pre-test Score

+39%

CORTM Essentials

Post-test Score

Asbestos Work in
Construction Hazard
Awareness

+28%
+20%

Working at Heights

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

Classroom Test Results
Source: A random selection of participant evaluations for 2017.
*Based on a random selection of 602 participant feedback forms.
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Develop a Sustainable Business

Products and Resources
Each year, IHSA produces new products based on our
own health and safety initiatives or at the request of
the Labour-Management Committees. As well, we often
update or revise some of our older products to make sure
they align with changes to the health and safety legislation
or industry best practices.
Listed below are some of the new and revised products
we produced in 2017. Projects being worked on for 2018
include the creation of a new Training Catalogue (IHS002)
and a new Product Catalogue (IHSA017).

In 2017, IHSA
products were
downloaded
239,159 times,
a 34% increase
from 2016

In 2017,
customers
ordered 179,739
of IHSA’s
products*

*Includes products that are free to members

Products
Quality
and
Vulnerable
Resources Assurance
Workers
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Top 10 Products by Sales in 2017
Product Name		

Quantity

Caution Tag – UWPC (UWPCT6)

11,368

Handbook for Construction Traffic Control Persons (B016)

10,263

Construction Health and Safety Manual (M029)
PC10A Tag – Do Not Operate: Red Tag Work Permit (UWPCT3)

8,351
8,097

Hold-Off Tag (UWPCT8)

7,332

PC10C Tag – Do Not Operate: Supporting Guarantee (UWPCT4)

5,520

Safety Talks Manual (V005)

5,036

Supervisor Log Book (RF008)

4,705

Danger Due To Poster (P022)

3,828

Electrical Construction and Maintenance Workers’
Safety Manual (M010)

3,689

Mobile Crane Manual (MC001)
IHSA produced an updated 2017
edition of this manual, which came
out at the end of the year. It’s
used internationally as a course
textbook for training programs and
is an essential reference tool for
preventing costly and often deadly
crane accidents. Contains 420
pages, over 500 illustrations, and
more than 150 load chart exercises
for 17 different types of cranes.

Training

ihsa.ca

Wait for the Wave Poster (P051)
This poster was developed to
prevent struck-by injuries and
fatalities when working around
moving vehicles and equipment.
It encourages workers on the
ground to make sure they are
seen by the equipment operator
by waving their hand and
making eye contact.

The Hazards of Heat Stress
Poster (IHSA013)
Previously only available as a
download, IHSA printed a hardcopy version of this poster to
encourage more widespread use
on jobsites.

Emergency Response Poster
(P103)
This has been one of our most
popular products. It contains
all of the contact information
needed in case of an emergency
and can be customized with the
specific details of each jobsite. We
updated it with a new look in 2017
and printed it on weather-resistant
polystyrene.

ihsa.ca

Construction Health and Safety
Manual (M029)
This is one of our bestselling and
most useful products. The revised
2017 edition is aligned with changes
to the construction regulations. It
contains everything you need to
recognize and protect yourself
against construction health and
safety hazards.
Guideline for Health & Safety
Representatives (W002)
The 2017 revised version of this
downloadable product was included
in our IHSA.ca Magazine. It provides
helpful information for workers who
are selected to be their company’s
Health and Safety Representative
(HSR). The content was updated to
reflect legislation changes regarding
training requirements for HSRs.
Fall Protection on Sloped Roofs
(IHSA053)
Previously only available as a
downloadable product, a printed
version of this booklet is now available
free to order. It contains helpful
information on training, safe work
procedures, and fall protection
equipment for those who work on sloped roofs.

2017 IHSA Annual Report

49

Member Injury and Illness Performance
50

Member Injury and Illness
Performance
IHSA’s vision is “safe and healthy workplaces free from
incidents, injuries, illnesses, or fatalities”. If a worker is
killed, injured, or becomes sick on the job, it can take
an emotional, social, and financial toll on the worker,
their family and friends, their co-workers, and their
employer.
IHSA provides detailed injury performance and
occupational disease data for each of the 28 rate
groups we serve. To understand where their health
and safety resources and efforts are needed most,
employers need to know the types of injuries and
illnesses that workers in their sectors are experiencing.

Traumatic Injuries
Twenty-seventeen was a disappointing year when it came to
injury prevention for IHSA member firms. Although the Total
Injury Rate went down by less than a percentage point, this
decrease was the result of a 4% increase in the number of
full-time equivalent workers who joined our rate groups last
year. A more accurate picture is revealed by the significant
increases in every other injury category in the chart on the
right. Particularly troubling is the 5.4% increase in the number
of lost-time injuries (LTIs).

Overall Injury Performance for IHSA Rate
Groups in 2017
Measure
2016
2017
			
Total Injury Rate
Total Injury Count

Visit the Statistics & Research section of our website
to access injury statistics for each rate group. The
information presented in the next few pages is for
all IHSA rate groups together, but it’s similar to the
sector-specific information you can receive there.

Almost all injury
measures went
up significantly in
2017 when
compared to
2016

2017 IHSA Annual Report

Visit the IHSA
website for
sector-specific
injury data

% Change

4.64

4.61

-0.65%

33,604

34,842

3.68%

Traumatic Fatalities Count

32

40

Lost-Time Injury (LTI) Rate

1.29

1.31

1.55%

9,359

9,864

5.40%

Non-lost-time Injury
(NLTI) Count

24,204

24,933

3.01%

Full-time Equivalent
Workers (FTEs)

723,842

755,429

4.36%

LTI Count

Source: WSIB/EIW 2017 Snapshot Current to March 2018 and 2016 Snapshot
Current to March 2017
Total Injury Rate = (LTIs + NLTIs + Traumatic Fatalities / FTEs) * 100
Total Injury Count = LTIs + NLTIs + Traumatic Fatalities + Disease Fatalities
LTI Rate = (LTIs/FTEs) * 100

Although the Total Injury Rate went down slightly,
this was the result of more workers (FTEs) rather
than fewer injuries

ihsa.ca

Traumatic Injury Trends
The five-year injury rate for IHSA member
firms continued trending downward in
2017 for all categories except the LTI rate.
Since injury rates are a factor of injury
counts divided by the number of workers,
these downward trends are not because
we’re working safer—they’re because we’re
employing more workers in the rate groups
we serve. We have a lot more to do in order
to protect the safety of our workers.

Overall Injury Rates for IHSA Rate Groups – 5-year Trend
6.00
5.11
4.95

5.00

4.55
4.64

4.61

4.00
3.73

3.62

1.37

1.32

3.34

3.34

3.30

1.21

1.29

1.31

3.00

2.00

1.00

After three years
of trending
downwards, the LTI
Rate trended
upwards for the
second year

Total Rate

NLTI Rate

0.00

LTI Rate

2013

Priority hazards
IHSA considers the following hazards
to be “priority hazards” for our rate
groups in terms of their potential for
injury frequency and severity.
• Struck-bys
• Falls
• Musculoskeletal
• Motor-Vehicle
Disorders (MSDs)
Incidents (MVIs)
With the addition of Critical Injuries,
the injury data based on priority
hazards is a good indicator of how
successful our year has been in terms
of prevention.

2014

2015

2016

2017

Lost-Time Injuries by Priority Hazards in 2017
2017
Hazards

2016

LTI Count

LTI Rate

LTI Count

MSDs

3,352

0.44

3,001

Falls

2,347

0.31

Struck-bys*

2,798

0.37

298

0.04

MVIs

334

Critical Injuries

771

Contact with Machinery
and Mobile Equipment†

% Change

LTI Rate

LTI Count

LTI Rate

0.41

11.7%

2,215

0.31

6.0%

0%

2,547

0.35

9.9%

5.7%

242

0.03

23.1%

33.3%

0.04

364

0.05

-8.2%

-20.0%

0.10

755

0.10

2.1%

0%

Source: WSIB/EIW 2017 Snapshot Current to March 2018 and 2016 Snapshot Current to March 2017
*Struck-bys include contact with objects and contact with machinery and moving equipment.
†Contact with machinery and moving equipment is a sub-set of struck-bys, accounting for
approximately 10% of all struck-by injuries.

7.3%

All priority
hazards went
up in 2017
except MVIs

Note: The definition of Critical Injury was broadened in 2017, so more injuries may have been be classified as such compared with other years.
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Lost-Time Injury Rates by Priority Hazards – Five-year Trend
.60

0.45

0.44

0.40

.40

0.35
0.34

.30

0.35
0.33

0.34

0.44

0.34

0.30

0.37
0.31

0.32

MSDs

.20

Falls

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

0.10

.10

Struck-bys

0.04
0.06

.00

0.06

0.05

0.05

MVIs and
Falls are
trending
downward

Criticals

MVIs

2013

2014

2015

2016

LTIs for
Young
Workers went
up by 15.2%

2017

Source: WSIB/EIW 2017 Snapshot Current to March 2018

Vulnerable
workers
Vulnerable workers have a
greater exposure than most
to hazardous conditions and
lack the power to alter those
conditions. This includes Young
Workers and New Workers.

The injury counts
for Young and New
Workers have been
trending up in the past
two years

52

Struck-bys
went up
considerably
in 2017

0.49

.50
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LTI Counts by Vulnerable Workers – 5-year Trend
1.373

1200
1,136
1,176

1,096

1,192

648

654

LTIs for New
Workers went
up by 12.8%

1,000

800

600

702

738

715

Young Workers

New Workers

0
2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

Source: WSIB/EIW 2017 Snapshot Current to March 2018
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High-impact claims

The total
number and rate
of high-impact
claims went
down in 2017

High-impact claims are a reflection of the severity
of the lost-time injuries experienced by our rate
groups. As defined by the Workplace Safety and
Insurance Board (WSIB), a high-impact claim is an
injury to the lower back or shoulder or a fracture.

Lost-Time Injuries by High-Impact Claims in 2017
2017

2016

% Change

Count

Rate

Count

Rate

Count

1,618

0.21

1,569

0.21

3.12%

Shoulder

630

0.08

723

0.10

-12.86%

-20%

Fractures

1,101

0.15

1,201

0.16

-8.33%

-6.25%

3,349

0.44

3,493

0.47

-4.12%

-6.38%

Lower Back

Total HI Claims

Rate

Although the
number of lower
back injuries
went up, the injury
rate stayed the
same

Source: WSIB/EIW 2017 Snapshot Current to March 2018 and 2016 Snapshot Current to March 2017

Rate groups
The rate groups with the best injury prevention rates for 2017 are featured in the
table below. We’d like to commend them on continuing their successful injury
prevention strategies.

Top 10 Lowest LTI Rates by Rate Group in 2017
Rank

Rate Group

LTI Rate

1

838 Natural Gas Distribution

0.09

2

833 Electric Power Generation

0.14

3

835 Oil, Power, and Water Distribution

0.60

4

723 Industrial, Commercial, and Institutional Construction

0.73

134 Aggregates

0.84

5
6
7
8

Once again,
Natural Gas
Distribution (838)
and Electric Power
Generation (833)
have the best LTI
rates

704 Electrical and Incidental Construction Services
711 Roadbuilding and Excavating

0.87
0.96

732 Heavy Civil Construction

0.97

9

707 Mechanical and Sheet Metal Work

1.04

10

830 Power and Telecommunication Lines

1.10

Source: WSIB/EIW 2017 Snapshot Current to March 2018
Note: Rate Group 755: Non-Exempt Partners and Executive Officers in Construction was not included
in the top 10 because partners and officers cannot perform any construction work on a site.
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Traumatic Fatalities
Despite our best efforts, a total of 40
Ontario workers in IHSA’s rate groups
lost their lives in 2017. That’s eight more
than in 2016. Once again, the topthree causes of death among Ontario
workers in our rate groups continue
to be Motor-Vehicle Incidents
(MVIs), Struck-bys, and Falls.

Accident Types
Causing Traumatic
Fatalities in 2017

40 Total
Fatalities
in 2017

6Other

15%
8%

13 Struck-bys

8

45%

32%

55 Years
and Over

20%

25
5 Under
Years

12%
to
9 25
34 Years

to 54
6 45
Years

23%

15%
to
12 35
44 Years

30%

Fatalities
than in
2016

3 Falls

18 MVIs
Age Range of
Fatalities in 2017

8 more

More than half of
those killed were
between 25 and 44
years of age

Almost half
of the 2017
fatalities
were from
MVIs

The risks leading to
workplace fatalities
are unacceptable. It
requires a greater level
of engagement among
all parties to ensure that
these risks are eliminated.
Enzo Garritano
President and CEO

Source: WSIB/EIW Current to March 2018
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4 more MVI Fatalities
than in 2016
18
•
•
•
•
•

MVIs
6 Motor-Vehicle Collision
4 Loss of Vehicle Control
3 Struck by Vehicle
3 Non-Collision
2 Unspecified

4 more Struck-by
Fatalities than in 2016
13 Struck-bys
• 7 Struck by Object
• 6 Caught in or
Compressed by Objects

3 fewer Fall Fatalities
than in 2016
3 Falls
• 2 Fall to Lower Level
• 1 Fall from Building or
Structure

6 Other
• 4 Aircraft Accident 		
(Helicopter Crash)
• 1 Aircraft Collision with
Pedestrian
• 1 Electrical Contact

IHSA Rate Groups with a Fatality in 2017
Rate Group
570 General Trucking

Keep

Your Promise
Drivers can do
their part by being
observant and
ensuring their vehicles
are safe and free of
distractions that divert
their attention from
the road.

ihsa.ca

711 Roadbuilding and Excavating

Number of
Fatalities
10
4

764 Homebuilding

4

835 Oil, Power, and Water Distribution

4

707 Mechanical and Sheet Metal

2

723 ICI Construction

2

737 Millwrighting and Welding

2

751 Siding and Outside Finishing

2

134 Aggregates

1

497 Ready-Mix Concrete

1

551 Air Transport Industries

1

560 Warehousing

1

577 Courier Services

1

584 School Buses

1

689 Waste Materials Recycling

1

719 Inside Finishing

1

728 Roofing

1

748 Formwork and Demolition

1
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Occupational disease continues to be an
important issue for IHSA and its stakeholders. In
the same way that we need to prevent injuries
from traumatic events such as falls, we need
to prevent work-related illnesses such as lung
cancer. Occupational diseases can range from
acute to chronic. In some cases, symptoms
can be reduced or reversed. But too often they
become something people have to live with for
the rest of their lives. The most important thing
to know is that they are all preventable.

Fatal Occupational
Diseases
There are still too many workers who die from
occupational diseases today caused by toxic
exposure from many years or even decades
ago. Despite stronger legislation and greater
awareness, workers continue to be exposed to
these hazardous agents.
In construction, asbestos-related diseases such as
mesothelioma, lung cancer, and asbestosis have
caused more deaths among workers compared
to fatalities from traumatic incidents such as falls,
struck-by injuries, and motor-vehicle collisions.
Although the use of asbestos has been reduced
dramatically, workers continue to be exposed
when they remove or disturb asbestos-containing
materials in older buildings.

Approved Fatalities from Occupational
Disease and Traumatic Incidents (2007-2016)

# of Fatalities

Member Injury and Illness Performance

Occupational Disease
800
700
600
500
400
300
200
100
0

Occupational Disease

10 year
total

Traumatic Incidents

476
211

178
33
Transportation

24

15

Electrical & Utilities

The Occupational Cancer Research Centre
(OCRC) has expressed concerns about other
hazardous agents for workers in our industries,
including ultraviolent radiation (from the sun),
diesel engine exhaust, and silica (see charts on
pages 57 and 58).

Eliminating the burden of
disease from hazardous
agents requires innovative
strategies to reduce
exposure and strong
commitment by employers
and workers.

Construction

126% more
Fatalities from
Occupational
Disease in
Construction

439% more
Fatalities from
Traumatic Incidents
in Transportation

NOTE: Although the data provided in the chart above offers some
information about the burden of occupational disease in IHSA’s
sectors, there likely remains much more not captured by this data.
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Occupational Exposure to Solar UV Radiation in Ontario
(by level of exposure and industry)
Low

Construction

Medium
High

Agriculture

Transportation and
Warehousing
Administrative
and Support
Government Services
Other Industries

0

20,000 40,000 60,000 80,000 100,000 120,000 140,000

Number of workers exposed

Occupational Exposure to Diesel Engine Exhaust in Ontario
(by level of exposure and industry)
Low

Transportation
and Warehousing

Medium
High

Construction
Government Services
Manufacturing
Wholesale Trade
Mining

Other Industries

0

20,000 40,000 60,000 80,000 100,000 120,000 140,000

160,000

Number of workers exposed
Source: Cancer Care Ontario and the Occupational Cancer Research Centre
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Occupational Exposure to Crystalline Silica in Ontario
(by level of exposure and industry)
Low
Medium

Construction

High

Manufacturing
Mining

Transportation
and Warehousing
Other Industries

0

20,000 40,000 60,000 80,000 100,000
Number of workers exposed

Source: Cancer Care Ontario and the Occupational Cancer Research Centre

Non-Fatal Occupational
Diseases
Non-fatal diseases such as noise-induced hearing loss (NIHL) continue to
represent a significant proportion of overall disease claims among IHSA
member firms. NIHL is completely preventable, yet it puts a significant
burden on the quality of life of workers—not to mention the financial
impact it has on the health and safety system.
Noise exposure in construction, electrical and utilities, and transportation is
a widespread hazard usually originating from power tools and equipment.
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Top Non-Fatal Disease Claims
for Construction Rate Groups
(2007-2016)

10 year
total

Disease		

Total Claims

Noise-Induced Hearing Loss

6,242

Hand-Arm Vibration Syndrome

1,075

Signs and Symptoms

1,050

Toxic Effects

861

Dermatitis

685

Pleural Plaques

436

Heat exhaustion

397

Other

958

Total

11,704

ihsa.ca

Top Non-Fatal Disease Claims
10 year
for Electrical and Utilities
total
Rate Groups (2007-2016)

Top Non-Fatal Disease
Claims for Transportation
Rate Groups (2007-2016)

Disease		

Disease		

Total Claims

Noise-Induced Hearing Loss

679

Noise-Induced Hearing Loss

Toxic Effects

378

10 year
total
Total Claims
2,156

Signs and Symptoms

674

Signs and Symptoms

211

Toxic Effects

472

Dermatitis

191

Dermatitis

279

Hand-Arm Vibration Syndrome

34

Heat Exhaustion

112

Allergic Reaction

31

Allergic Reaction

97

Heat Exhaustion

26

Other Respiratory Diseases

51

Other

114

Other

Total

1,664

Total

240
4,081

211,000
people were
reached
during the noise
awareness
campaign

30,000
Ontario
workers were
compensated
for NIHL (from
2006 to 2015)

Preventing Occupational Diseases
In 2017, IHSA continued to support its stakeholders by raising awareness
about health hazards in the workplace and new or amended legislation
to prevent exposure to these hazards. We also developed educational
resources to help workplaces prevent exposures to health hazards and
supported research in occupational disease prevention.

Raising Awareness
Noise-induced hearing loss (NIHL) is by far the most common
occupational disease experienced by workers among the industries IHSA
serves. In 2017, IHSA led an initiative to raise awareness about the hazards
of noise at work. On April 26, 2017, IHSA joined with the Ministry of Labour,
Workplace Safety and Insurance Board, and other system partners to
commemorate International Noise Awareness Day.

ihsa.ca

The prevent
noise word mark
raised awareness
about NIHL

On International
Noise Awareness
Day, IHSA
distributed
resources through
its web page
ihsa.ca/noise
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IHSA participated in several industry events to raise awareness
about Ontario’s new noise regulation (O.Reg. 381). The
Toronto, Barrie, and Oshawa Labour-Management committees
held a joint meeting focused on noise hazards and hearing
loss prevention. The Ministry of Labour’s Provincial Hygienist,
Marc Cousineau, gave a presentation on the new noise
legislation.

Developing Resources
Hearing protection devices (HPDs) are often relied upon to
protect workers from overexposure to noise. However, there
is a need to provide training and instruction to workers in
the proper selection, care, and use of HPDs. In 2017, the IHSA
released a series of free e-learning presentations on the Basics
of Hearing Protection.

Supporting Research
The IHSA is a strong supporter of research that advances
health and safety in Ontario workplaces. In 2017, IHSA
collaborated with the Occupational Cancer Research Centre
(OCRC) on several initiatives related to preventing exposure
to cancer-causing agents such as crystalline silica, which can
cause lung cancer and silicosis.

Preparing for Changes to Legislation
Canada’s Workplace Hazardous Materials Information
System (WHMIS) system will soon be changing to
reflect the requirements of the Globally Harmonized
System for Classification and Labelling of Chemicals
(GHS). As the transition deadline approaches, IHSA
has been busy preparing stakeholders for these new
requirements.
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Keep

Your Promise
Workers can do their
part by reporting any
hazards they encounter
and wearing the required
personal protective
equipment.
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Financial Statements
as of December 31, 2017

ihsa.ca

Financial Statements

Infrastructure Health &
Safety Association
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May 23, 2018

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Infrastructure Health & Safety Association
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Infrastructure Health & Safety Association,
which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2017 and the statements of
operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes, which
comprise a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s responsibility for the financial statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditor’s responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Infrastructure Health & Safety Association as at December 31, 2017 and the results of its operations and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit
organizations.

Chartered Professional Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
PwC Tower, 18 York Street, Suite 2600, Toronto, Ontario, Canada M5J 0B2
T: +1 416 863 1133, F: +1 416 365 8215
“PwC” refers to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, an Ontario limited liability partnership.
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Infrastructure Health & Safety Association
Statement of Financial Position
As at December 31, 2017
2017
$

2016
$

17,394,431
7,393,001
1,250,383
242,827
86,413

13,493,196
8,900,788
1,330,126
301,591
592,755

Assets
Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments (note 3)
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Prepaid rent and deposits (note 4)

26,367,055

24,618,456

Prepaid rent and deposits (note 4)

296,333

334,218

Long-term investments (note 3)

500,000

1,800,000

1,117,283

973,222

Investment in CHSI (note 5)
Capital assets (note 6)

810,664

210,460

29,091,335

27,936,356

3,643,859
67,457
258,085

3,357,072
293,857
436,014

3,969,401

4,086,943

122,675

160,560

Liabilities
Current liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue (note 7)
Customer deposits

Deferred revenue (note 7)
Deferred capital contributions (note 8)

119,907

25,852

22,863,000

19,925,000

27,074,983

24,198,355

Invested in capital assets

690,757

184,608

Internally restricted for CHSI capital expenditures (note 10)

466,075

465,907

Employee future benefits (note 9)

Net Assets

Unrestricted

Commitments and contingencies (notes 12 and 15)

859,520

3,087,486

2,016,352

3,738,001

29,091,335

27,936,356

Approved on Behalf of the Executive Board

___________________________________ Director ________________________________ Director

Joe Redshaw
Michael Frolick
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Infrastructure Health & Safety Association
Statement of Operations

For the year ended December 31, 2017

Revenue

Ministry of Labour (note 11)
Training and publication recoveries
Amortization of deferred capital contributions (note 8)
Sundry revenue
Share of income from Centre for Health & Safety Innovation (note 5)
Interest income
Amortization of deferred rent funding (note 7)

Expenditures

Salaries
Employee benefits
Occupancy
Travel and vehicle
Program delivery expenses
Advertising and promotion
Equipment and maintenance
Professional fees
Postage and courier
Personnel costs
Telecommunications
Office and general
Amortization of capital assets
Supplies and services
Research and library costs

Excess of revenue over expenditures for the year

2017
$

2016
$

24,341,584
9,427,851
48,051
230,904
144,061
441,089
37,885

22,966,313
8,890,555
69,239
101,144
66,479
262,969
37,885

34,671,425

32,394,584

16,517,943
5,840,788
3,374,057
2,060,150
1,874,033
1,621,930
1,168,309
384,514
193,982
177,836
148,807
192,534
154,274
34,136
19,481

16,010,628
5,621,707
3,104,292
1,789,703
1,601,859
935,421
666,732
387,418
181,459
168,773
157,223
152,800
112,970
70,423
25,283

33,762,774

30,986,691

908,651

1,407,893

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Infrastructure Health & Safety Association
Statement of Changes in Net Assets

For the year ended December 31, 2017

Net assets - Beginning of
year
Excess of revenue over
expenditures for the year
Net activity in capital assets
Interfund transfers - net
Employee future benefits
remeasurement (note 9)

Net assets - End of year

2017

2016

Invested
in capital
assets
$

Internally
restricted
for CHSI
capital
expenditures
$

Unrestricted
$

Total
$

Total
$

184,608

465,907

3,087,486

3,738,001

4,182,808

506,149
-

168

908,651
-

1,407,893
-

-

-

690,757

466,075

908,651
(506,149)
(168)

(2,630,300) (2,630,300)
859,520

2,016,352

(1,852,700)
3,738,001

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Infrastructure Health & Safety Association
Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31, 2017

2017
$

2016
$

908,651

1,407,893

(48,051)
154,274
(144,061)
1,068,500
(760,800)

(69,239)
112,970
(66,479)
1,032,900
(678,000)

79,743
58,764
544,227
286,787
(264,285)
(177,929)

(510,066)
83,883
(306,235)
516,557
188,515
30,599

Cash provided by (used in)
Operating activities

Excess of revenue over expenditures for the year
Adjustment to reconcile excess of revenue over expenditures to net cash
provided by operating activities
Amortization of deferred capital contributions
Amortization of capital assets
Share of income from Centre for Health & Safety Innovation
Employee future benefits expense (note 9)
Employee future benefits paid (note 9)
Changes in non-cash working capital balances
Accounts receivable
Inventory
Prepaid rent and deposits
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Customer deposits

Financing activities

Funding received for capital purchases

Investing activities

Change in investments - net
Purchase of capital assets

Change in cash and cash equivalents during the year

1,705,820

1,743,298

142,106

-

2,807,787
(754,478)

(144,756)
-

2,053,309

(144,756)

3,901,235

1,598,542

Cash and cash equivalents - Beginning of year

13,493,196

11,894,654

Cash and cash equivalents - End of year

17,394,431

13,493,196

14,292,309
3,102,122

13,493,196
-

17,394,431

13,493,196

Cash and cash equivalents consist of
Cash
Money market funds

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Infrastructure Health & Safety Association
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

1

Nature and purpose of organization
Infrastructure Health & Safety Association (IHSA or the Association) was formed on January 1, 2010 by
amalgamating Construction Safety Association of Ontario, Electrical & Utilities Safety Association and
Transportation Health & Safety Association of Ontario. IHSA is a not-for-profit occupational health and safety
organization providing health and safety training material and services to Ontario’s construction, electrical and
utilities and transportation industries. IHSA assists organizations achieve safer and healthier work
environments by identifying and reducing workplace risks and hazards to prevent and reduce workplace
injuries, illness and disease. The Association’s mission is to develop sector specific partnerships and support
their implementation of prevention solutions that provide continuous improvement in health and safety
performance.
The Association is exempt from tax under Section 149(1)(I) of the Income Tax Act.

2

Summary of significant accounting policies
Basis of accounting
The Association has prepared its financial statements in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for
not-for-profit organizations (ASNPO).
Revenue recognition
The Association follows the deferral method of accounting for funding. Restricted funding from the Ministry of
Labour (MOL) and other government ministries is deferred and recognized as revenue when the related
expenses are incurred. Training recoveries are recognized as revenue when services are rendered and there is
reasonable assurance of collection. Safety product recoveries relating to inventory are recognized as revenue
when goods are shipped and there is reasonable assurance of collection. Unrestricted funding is recognized as
revenue when received or receivable. Funding received for capital expenditures is deferred and recognized as
revenue on the same basis as amortization of the related assets.
Interest income is recognized into revenue when earned, on a time proportionate basis.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, balances with the Association’s bank and highly liquid
investments with original maturity dates of three months or less at the date of acquisition.
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Infrastructure Health & Safety Association
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

Capital assets
Capital assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization. Amortization is provided on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful life of the assets as follows:
Computer equipment
Computer software
Emergency response equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Leasehold improvements

3 years
3 years
5 years
5 years
term of lease

Acquisitions of less than $5,000 are expensed when purchased.
Impairment of capital assets
The Association monitors its use of capital assets and when the capital asset no longer has any long-term service
potential to the Association, the excess of its net carrying amount over any residual value is recognized as an
expense in the statement of operations.
Inventory
Course and seminar inventory is valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value and is expensed in program
delivery expenses. Cost is determined on an average cost basis.
Employee future benefits
i)

Defined benefit post-retirement plan
The Association provides certain non-pension post-retirement benefits consisting of extended health and
other benefits. The defined benefit obligation is calculated based on the most recent actuarial valuation
report prepared for accounting purposes.
The Association determines its obligation as the difference between its total liabilities and related costs less
the fair value of the plan assets. Remeasurements and other items are charged to net assets as they occur.
The Association applies the following policies:
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•

The cost of retirement benefits earned by employees is actuarially determined using the projected
benefit method pro-rated on service and management’s best estimate of expected plan investment
performance for funded plans, salary escalation, retirement ages of employees and expected healthcare costs.

•

Actuarial gains and losses arise when the actual return on plan assets differs from the expected return
on the plan assets for a period, or when the accrued benefit obligations change during the year. The
actuarial gains and losses are recorded in the statement of changes in net assets.
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Infrastructure Health & Safety Association
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

ii)

Defined benefit pension plan
Employees belong to the WSIB Employees’ Pension Plan and the WSIB Employees’ Supplementary
Pension Plan which are defined benefit plans that meet the definition of a multiemployer plan under ASPE
3462 and are thus accounted for as defined contribution plans. The plans provide for partially indexed
pensions based on years of service and earnings rates near retirement. The investment activities and the
administrative and accounting matters of the pension are administered by the WSIB.

Financial instruments
Financial instruments are recorded at fair value when acquired or issued. All investments in money market
funds, bonds and guaranteed investment certificates are recorded at amortized cost. All other financial
instruments are reported at cost or amortized cost less impairment, if applicable. Financial assets are tested for
impairment when changes in circumstances indicate the asset could be impaired. Transaction costs on the
acquisition, sale or issue of financial instruments are expensed for those items remeasured at fair value at each
statement of financial position date and charged to the financial instrument for those measured at amortized
cost.
Investment in Centre for Health & Safety Innovation
The Association is a founding member of Centre for Health & Safety Innovation (CHSI), a not-for-profit
corporation that provides shared premises for the Association and one other Ontario health and safety
organization. Under its membership agreement, the Association is party to a joint venture with one other party.
The Association paid a fee of 25.64% of the startup and operating costs of CHSI up to December 31, 2006. The
Association maintains a 25.64% share in CHSI while Workplace Safety & Prevention Services maintains a
74.36% share. In addition, the Association has chosen to use the equity basis to account for its proportionate
share of the annual operating results of CHSI.
Use of estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with ASNPO requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses
during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from management’s best estimates as additional
information becomes available in the future.
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Infrastructure Health & Safety Association
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

3

Investments
Investments consist of bonds and guaranteed investment certificates earning interest with rates ranging from
1.05% to 2.05% annually and maturing between January 18, 2018 and September 15, 2020.

Investments - total
Amounts maturing within one year
Investments - long-term

2017
$

2016
$

7,893,001
7,393,001

10,700,788
8,900,788

500,000

1,800,000

Highly liquid investments of $3,142,725 consisting of cash and monies held in money market funds were
reclassified to cash and cash equivalents at December 31, 2017.

4

Prepaid rent and deposits
2017
$

2016
$

Deposit on Voyageur Court premises
Deposit on Skills Development Centre premises
Long-term prepaid rent
Deposit on CHSI premises
January’s prepaid premises rent
Other

135,213
25,000
123,119
50,885
48,529

135,213
25,000
161,004
50,885
159,589
395,282

Less: Current portion

382,746
86,413

926,973
592,755

Long-term

296,333

334,218

The long-term prepaid rent resulted from contributions to the Association for the Skills Development Centre
location to help meet the rent payment obligations. These contributions were paid to the landlord as a
prepayment of rent in order to reduce the monthly rent payments and are amortized into expenses over the
term of the lease agreement.

5

Investment in Centre for Health & Safety Innovation
CHSI is a not-for-profit organization, incorporated under the laws of the Province of Ontario on September 8,
2004, whose purpose is to create a focal point for innovation and applied learning in the prevention of
workplace injuries and illnesses and to act as a key resource for employers, employees and others seeking
expertise and direction on how to make workplaces safer. The organization is exempt from income taxes under
Section 149(1)(I) of the Income Tax Act.
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Infrastructure Health & Safety Association
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

The audited financial statements as at December 31, 2017 of CHSI have not been issued yet. The information
below reflects the financial results in the draft financial statements as reported on by CHSI’s management:
CHSI
$

IHSA
25.64% share
$

Assets
Liabilities

5,340,552
982,977

1,369,317
252,035

Net assets

4,357,575

1,117,282

Operating results (year ended December 31, 2017)
Revenue
Expenses (operating)

5,853,629
5,188,333

1,500,870
1,330,288

Excess of revenue over expenses
Expenses (transfer to replacement reserve)
Increase in net assets
Cash flows
Operating
Investing
Increase in cash during year

CHSI Investment consists of
Balance - Beginning of year
Proportionate share of excess of revenue over expenses
Balance - End of year

6

170,582
(26,521)

561,860

144,061

755,536
553,752

193,719
141,982

1,309,288

335,701

2017
$

2016
$

973,222
144,061

906,743
66,479

1,117,283

973,222

2017

2016

Capital assets

Computer equipment
Computer software
Emergency response
equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Leasehold improvements

ihsa.ca

665,296
(103,436)

Cost
$

Accumulated
amortization
$

Net
$

Net
$

43,052
65,963

43,052
65,963

-

-

1,639,425
486,909
1,436,543

1,068,264
480,484
1,203,465

571,161
6,425
233,078

3,330
22,875
184,255

3,671,892

2,861,228

810,664

210,460
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Infrastructure Health & Safety Association
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

7

Deferred revenue
Deferred revenue represents unspent funds from the MOL and other funded programs reflected under the Skills
Development Centre. The changes in the deferred operating funding balances are as follows:
2017

2016

Skills
Development
Centre
$

MOL
$

Total
$

Total
$

399,845
-

54,572
-

454,417
-

265,902
226,400

(37,885)
(226,400)

(37,885)
-

Balance - Beginning of year
Funding received
Amortization of deferred rent
funding
Recognition of deferred revenue
Less: Current portion
Long-term portion

(37,885)
(226,400)

-

135,560
37,885

54,572
29,572

190,132
67,457

454,417
293,857

97,675

25,000

122,675

160,560

The long-term portion relates to funds contributed to the Association for the Skills Development Centre
location to help meet the rent payment obligations. These contributions were paid to the landlord as a
prepayment of rent in order to reduce the monthly rent payments and are amortized into revenue over the term
of the lease agreement.
The long-term portion also includes $12,441 (2016 - $12,441) relating to future capital expenditures for the
Skills Development Centre location.

8

Deferred capital contributions
Deferred capital contributions represent the unamortized amount and unspent amount of contributions
received for the purchase of capital assets.
2017
$
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2016
$

Balance - Beginning of year
Funding received
Amortization of deferred capital contributions

25,852
142,106
(48,051)

95,091
(69,239)

Balance - End of year

119,907

25,852
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Infrastructure Health & Safety Association
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

9

Employee future benefits
The Association provides extended health-care, dental and life insurance benefits to all full-time employees
hired by the legacy associations prior to amalgamation on retirement to the age of 65, with the following
exceptions:
•

For former Electrical & Utilities Safety Association employees, these benefits extend to age 65 for
employees hired subsequent to January 1, 2007. Benefits may be extended beyond age 65 at the discretion
of the employee and the assumption of 50% of the cost by the employee. For employees hired prior to
2007, benefits extend for the employee’s lifetime.

•

For former Construction Safety Association of Ontario employees, no future benefits are provided for
employees hired subsequent to August 1, 2001. For employees hired prior to Augu st 1, 2001, benefits
extend for the employee’s lifetime.

In addition to the extended health-care, dental and life insurance benefits, the Association also provides exit
benefits to employees in accordance with the Association’s policy.
Components of the accrued benefit obligation are as follows:

Post-retirement benefits
Exit benefits

2017
$

2016
$

21,316,400
1,546,600

18,568,600
1,356,400

22,863,000

19,925,000

The defined benefit obligation relating to post-retirement benefit plans as at December 31 is as follows:
2017
$

2016
$

Accrued benefit liability - Beginning of year
Current service cost
Interest cost on obligation

19,925,000
294,800
773,700

17,717,400
307,800
725,100

Benefit payments
Actuarial loss recognized in statement of changes in net assets

20,993,500
(760,800)
2,630,300

18,750,300
(678,000)
1,852,700

Accrued benefit liability - End of year

22,863,000

19,925,000

294,800
773,700

307,800
725,100

1,068,500

1,032,900

Benefit plan expense
Current service cost
Interest on defined benefit obligation
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Infrastructure Health & Safety Association
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

The latest actuarial valuation of the post-retirement benefit plans was prepared as at December 31, 2017. The
significant actuarial assumptions adopted in measuring the Association’s defined benefit obligations are as
follows:

Health-care increase per annum
Discount rate
Dental care increase per annum
Salary increase per annum

2017
%

2016
%

5.00
3.40
3.00
1.00

5.00
3.90
3.00
1.00

The Association intends to fund its defined benefit obligation with the following assets:
$
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Long-term investments
Less: Accrued benefit obligation - End of year
Total unfunded employee benefit obligation

8,200,292
7,393,001
500,000
16,093,293
(22,863,000)
(6,769,707)

Defined benefit pension plan
The employer contributions made in the year amounted to $2,446,166 (2016 - $2,415,533), which are included
in employee benefits expense.

10 Internally restricted fund for CHSI capital expenditures
The Board approved setting up an internally restricted fund in fiscal 2012 for the Association’s share of future
capital expenditures relating to CHSI. The fund was designated based on a reserve fund study performed on
CHSI in 2011. In the current year, the Association allocated $26,689 (2016 - $120,048) to this fund. These
amounts represent the Association’s share of CHSI’s replacement reserve fund.

11 Ministry of Labour
The MOL’s surplus investment policy states that the Association’s operations are not to result in a deficit
position at the end of any government fiscal year. The amount of surplus that is eligible to be retained by the
Association will be a maximum of 6% of the previous year’s audited total actual revenue including government
transfer payments. Any amount in excess of the 6% maximum amount may be recovered by MOL in the
following year through reduction of transfer payment funding.
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December 31, 2017

Surplus funds must be used to support MOL’s commitment to enhance health and safety in Ontario workplaces.
No surplus funds can be used without written approval from MOL. MOL will notify the Association in writing in
a timely manner regarding decisions related to proposed retention of surpluses. The use of surplus funds
approved to be retained by the Association will be tracked by the Association and reported to MOL. Any amount
not approved to be retained will be recovered by MOL.

12 Commitments
The Association has operating leases for various office premises and equipment with minimum annual
payments to non-related parties as follows:
$
2018
2019
2020
2021
2022
Thereafter

963,852
941,100
941,100
657,150
562,500
1,968,750
6,034,452

13 Related party transactions
The Association subleases its premises from CHSI and pays its proportionate rental area share of the operating
costs. Any surplus (deficiency) in CHSI will be shared by the members based on their proportionate rentable
areas (note 4). During the year, CHSI charged rental and operating costs of $947,530 (2016 - $951,914). These
transactions occur in the normal course of operations, and are measured at the exchange amount, which is the
amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties, and approximates the arm’s length
equivalent value.
Minimum annual rental lease payments are as follows:
$
2018
2019
2020
2021

453,588
453,588
453,588
113,397
1,474,161

14 Economic dependence
The Association is dependent on the MOL for funding the cost of operations.
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Infrastructure Health & Safety Association
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2017

15 Contingencies
The Association may, from time to time, be subject to claims and legal proceedings brought against it in the
normal course of business. Such matters are subject to many uncertainties. Management believes adequate
provisions have been made in the accounts where required and the ultimate resolution of such contingencies
will not have a material adverse effect on the financial position of the Association. Any amounts in settlement of
claims in excess of recorded provisions will be charged to the statement of operations in the year of claim.

16 Financial risk management
The Association is exposed to certain financial instrument risks, such as credit risk, interest rate risk and
liquidity risk.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by failing
to discharge an obligation. The Association’s financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit
risk relate primarily to cash and cash equivalents, short-term investments, accounts receivable and long-term
investments. The Association manages its exposure to this risk by maintaining its cash and investments with a
major Schedule I bank and where feasible obtaining, prepayment for courses held. Accounts receivable are net
of an allowance for doubtful accounts of $51,987 (2016 - $50,866).
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Association is exposed to interest rate risk arising from the possibility that
changes in interest rates will affect the value of fixed income denominated investments.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk the Association will encounter difficulty in meeting its obligations associated with
financial liabilities. Liquidity risk arises from accounts payable and accrued liabilities, employee future benefits
and commitments. The Association continues to focus on maintaining adequate liquidity to meet operating
working capital requirements and capital expenditures.
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Your Guide

To construction health and
safety legislation
Get information on 50 key topics that
will help you reference and understand
your legal obligations under the Ontario
construction regulations (213/91) in a
plain-language format.

Get the new
FREE mobile app
Application designed and maintained by

Training when and where
you need it
IHSA’s New Regional Facilities
Thunder Bay
As of September 2017, IHSA
has been using a dedicated
classroom/training facility
in the newly constructed
Electrical Industry Building
in Thunder Bay. Feedback
from this new space has been
positive and IHSA is looking
to expand on course offerings
at the facility in partnership
with IBEW Local 402.

Voyager Training Centre
21 Voyager Court South, Etobicoke, Ontario M9W 5M7
Tel: 1-800-263-5024 • Fax: 416-674-8866

Kingston
IHSA has a dedicated classroom/training facility in a space at the Kingston
Construction Association. IHSA conducts both classroom-based and handson training here.

IHSA’s new Ottawa facility
Log on to ihsa.ca or visit
Google Play or the App
Store to download your
FREE app today.

In 2018, IHSA will open a new training facility
in Ottawa. This new space at 2515 St. Laurent
Blvd. will feature two classrooms, a meeting
room, as well as a hands-on training area.

Safety Pals coming soon!

Centre for Health & Safety Innovation
5110 Creekbank Road, Suite 400,
Mississauga, Ontario L4W 0A1
Tel: 1-800-263-5024 • Fax: 905-625-8998

Keep your
promise to return
home safe to
your loved ones.

IHSA will be launching its new Safety
Pals in 2018. These friendly faces
representing our member industries will guide
you to IHSA’s many products, services, and resources
featured in our publications, on our website,
and in promotional materials.

Do your part
to keep your
workplace
safe.

JOEY
AMBER

Skills Development Centre
5345 Creekbank Road, Mississauga, ON L4W 5L5
Tel: 1-800-263-5024

Deb, Health
and Safety
Consultant
Alex, Health and
Safety Consultant

IHSA Vision
Safe and healthy workplaces free from incidents,
injuries, illnesses, or fatalities
IHSA Mission
To be Ontario’s trusted health and safety
resource for effective sector-specific engagement,
education, products, and services.
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Keep your promise—Do your part!

IHSA’s new state-of-the-art
Mobile Classroom delivers
training when and where you
need it

IHSA.ca

21 Voyager Court South
Etobicoke, ON M9W 5M7
Toll Free: 1-800-263-5024
customerservice@ihsa.ca

Infrastructure Health and Safety Association		

IHSA is a leader in health and safety
education. Through skills-based
training, auditing, and evaluation,
we provide safety solutions to those
who perform high-risk activities such
as working at heights, working with
energized high-voltage power systems,
driving motor vehicles, transporting
dangerous goods, working on suspended
access equipment, and clearing utility lines.
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Make safety work
for you. IHSA is
your first step.

Proudly serving construction, electrical, utilities, transportation, aggregates, natural gas, and ready-mix concrete

